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������&�( (����1���"����& %������ F��" .���� )�(�� ��#
%+�M� (������ �� -�����'��+ ��('�#��& �$� $�&$'� �(('����#
E���� E����� �� )�'%����� 

2$� ,���� ������''� ��%��"�# �� �$� F��" .���� ���P�(� ��
(�''�%������� ���$ /�(��#�#� #� 2������ � C�	������ #�
)�(�� 7/2C)< �� � ;�Q;� %���� .���	��+ ����� � ������ ��
�$���$�'#�� 	�'�� ��$��(��& �(0��������� ���� /2C)+ �$�
�����*%+� P���� 	������ ���'# ��� 9��> �� �$� ���P�(� R�#��
�$� P���� 	������ �&�������+ )�'(� ���'# $�	� �� ����(��	�
�������� �� :�> �� �$� F��" .���� ���P�(� �$�'�� %+� ���'#
��� �$� ��������& ��> 

-� �$� ���P�(� �� ���'' �� ��� (������(���� �$���+ �� ��#� ��
(�����%����� �� �$� ,���� �����(��' ���������(� �� ���� 
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2���' ��	���� &�������# %� G��%� 4��&#�� ��
���� ��� .45=; ��''��� 7���8 1 .45;; ��''���<+
�����������& �� ��(����� �� 8=> .���	��+ �$�
#�	����� (�������# �� ��&����� � '��� �� ���� #��
�� �����1���� �� ��
�# ������ ��� ���	����'�
#����(����# ��# �$� $�&$ ��1%���#��& ��# ���������
(���� ��(����# #����& �$� ���� 

G��%� 4��&#�� ��('�#�� �$� G��%� ��# 2��1F�"
�'�����& ����������� '�(���# �� -%��#���+ .��&
4��& C����& �$� ����+ (���(���� ������ ��� ��#�
�� ��	��� �$� ������ �'�����& (���'�
 ��#
��������� �� ���� � ,������� #����& ��'�(�- -'' �$�
��&��#��& ���" $�� ��� %��� (���'���# ��# �$�
��($1'�	�# ������� '��#���" �� ��(� �&��� ��������&
�� ��'' (���(��� G��%� 4��&#�� $�� ��� %���
����������# ���� � ��#��� (���'�
 �$��
��(��������� ���� #����&+ �$�����&+ ��&$������& ��#
(�'����' �����(����� F���'�� ��� �����(����� ��('�#�
�$� NC��&�� E����N ����������+ (�������(� ��#
%��0��� ��(�'�����+ ������ #����& �������& N2��$���
/$�'���N ������# ���'�+ �����' ��# ���	���� �$���+
� ����� ���� �'��� ��# �� ����1��� (��� 

*�''����& �$� (���'����� �� ����	����� ���"+ �$�
,���� '���($�# �� �
�����	� ���"����& (�����&�
�� ������� �$� �����(���� F������&� �� ����#�'�
��(������& !� ��(�&������ �� ��� �(���( ������ �� .��&
4��&+ G��%� 4��&#�� ��� �$� .��& 4��&
/����%���#� -���# �� ���� 

.)�+� '�/����
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C����& �$� ����+ �$� ,���� (��('�#�#
� #��' ���$ �$� -�����'��� &����& ��# ��#��
&����+ %+�+ �� ���� � P���� 	������ �� (�1
�
���# �$��� &����& %������� �� -��� %+�
���� ��# �������� �$� $�&$'� �(('����#
E���� E����� �� )�'%����� ��# J������#
E����� �� F���$ J��$ (������ #���	�
��%�������' ��	���� ���� -���� $�&$ ��''��� 

R�#�� �$�� #��'+ %��$ ������� $�	� ��#����"��
�� (�1��	��� ���$ ��($ ��$�� �� �� �
('���	�
%���� �� ��� ������ &����& 	������� �� -���+
��('�#��& /��&�����+ 2$��'��#+ G���� ��#
�$� ,������ E$��� ��&���+ %�� �
('�#��&
-�����'�� ��# ?�� S��'��# L��$�� �$�
,������ E$��� ��&��� 7� � )�(��+ .��& 4��&+
2����� ��# )���'��# E$���<+ �$� ,���� ��''
�'���� �������� �� ����(��	� �������� �� :�>
�� ��� ��� 	������� �$�'� %+� ���'# ���
�$� ��������& ��> 3����#� �$� ,������
E$��� ��&���+ %+� ��'' �'���� $�	� ��
����(��	� �������� �� :�> �$�'� �$� ,����
��'' ��� �$� ��������& ��> 

-� � ����� ���� �� ��� �
������� �'�� %����#
)�(��+ �� $�	� ��(���'�+ 	�� �$������O%+�
P���� 	������+ ��%�����# ��� �������# (��(���
��� �$� ����%'��$���� �� �� N����&����# ������N
(��������& &����&+ '������ ��# �������������
��(�'����� �� /��&����� 

-� � ����'� �� )�(��M� �(�����( ��((���+
���� -���� &�	�������� ��� ���
(����#����& �$� '�&�'������� �� &����& ��
��#�� �� %���� �$��� �(������� ��# ������� 
2$�� ��('�#�� (�������� ��($ �� 2$��'��# ��#
G���� @��"��& �$��#+ �� %�'��	� �$�� �$���
��� ���� '�(����	� ������������� �	��'�%'� ��
�$� &����& ��#����� �� -��� ��# �$�
�����O%+� P���� 	������ ���	�#�� �� ���$ �
�����(� �'������ �� (�����'��� �� �$���
������������� 

�$!�& %&�#%� $# �/ �"��/�
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2$� ,���� (��#�(�� ��� ��	������� %��"��& ��# �����(��' ���	�(�� �$���&$ ��� := ;=> ����# '����#
��%��#����+ I�'�� E��	��&��(� .�'#��&� @�����# 7I�'�� E��	��&��(�+ /��(" E�#�Q 69�9< �(0����#
�� *�%����� ���8 2$�� ��%��#���� ������ � %���# ���&� �� ��	������� %��"��& ��# %��"���&� ���	�(��+
�� ��'' �� (�����' ���"�� ��# (�������� �����(� �#	����� ���	�(�� �� ��&����' ��# ������������' ('����� 

2���' ��	���� &�������# %� �$� ,����M� !�	������� J��"��& C�	����� �� ���� ��� .459�: � ��''���
7���8 1 .45=: ��''���<+ �����������& �� ��(����� �� :=> /�&�����' ������ %����� ��
 ��# ��������
�������# �� .459� 6 ��''��� 7���8 1 .458 ��''���<+ �����������& �� ��(����� �� 8D�> 

2$� ���������(� �� �$� %��"���&� %������� #����#� 	��� ��($ �� �$� ���"�� ���#��& �(��	��� 2�"��&
�#	����&� �� �$� �(��	� ���"�� �(��	�����+ �$� �����(��' ���������(� �� �$� ,����M� %��"���&�
��%1#�	����� �����	�# ��%�������''� �� ���� C����& �$� ����+ �� ��(�����# ���"�� �$��� �� �$� '�(�'
���(" ���"��+ �$�'� �$� ��	������� %��"��& ��%1#�	����� (���'���# ��	���' �'�(������ ��# !F3
������(����� - ��%��#���� ��� ��� �� �� )�(�� �� ���	�#� �#	����� ���	�(�� �� ��'�(��# ('����� 2$��
��� ���� �� ��� ������������� ��# %��'# �� %���# ��(�&������ �� �$�� #�	�����M� %������� �� )�(�� 

@��"��& ������#+ ��	������� %��"��& ��'' ������ � ���1(��� %������� �� �$� ,���� .���	��+ ������
��'' %� ��#� �� �
���# ��� %������� �� )�(�� �� ��#�� �� '�	���&� ��� �$� ,����M� ����%'��$�# ������"
��# (����(����� �	�� �$��� 

98����� ������������� ����������� ������� -����' H����� ����

$��2�����3
2$� ,����M� ��($��'�&� #�	����� ��� (�����# �� )�� ���� ��''����& � &���� ����&��������� �$�($
����'��# �� �$� ��'' �(0�������� �� �-��� ��# B'�
�� ���� I�'�� E��	��&��(� 2$��� ��� ����� ��� ���
&�����# ��#�� )�'(� 2�($��'�&� ,���� @�����#+ � �$�''�1����# ��%��#���� �� �$� ,���� ��# %�(���
�$� ,����M� &����& !2 ���������(���� ��� 

H���'�� ��� �$� 2�($��'�&� C�	����� �� ���� ���� 	��� ��(����&��& 2����	�� �������# �� .459;� 6
��''��� 7���8 1 .45�D � ��''���<+ �����������& � ���(��(�'�� ��(����� �� �8�> /�&�����' ������ %�����
��
 ��# �������� �������# �� .459� ; ��''���+ �� (������# �� � '��� �� .45D � ��''��� �� ���8 

J���# �� )�(��+ B'�
�� $�� ����%'��$�# ����'� �� � ������� &����& !2 ���������(���� ���(��'��� �������&
('����� � ��'' ���&� �� ������ ����&������ ��# ������" ���	�(�� C����& �$� ����+ '�	���&��& ��� �$�
,����M� �����& ���� �� /G)+ B'�
�� ����&�# �� ��(��� ��	���' '�(����	� �&�������� �� �$� ���	�����
�� &����& !2 ���������(���� ��� �$� '��&��� &����& (��(������ $�'#�� �� )�(�� !� �� �
��(��# �$��
B'�
�� ��'' (������� �� %� ��� �� �$� '��&��� !2 ��'����� ���	�#��� ��� /G) �� #�� (����� 

2$� �-��� &���� �� (��������+ %���# �� .��& 4��&+ �� ��&�&�# �� �$� ���	����� �� (�����$����	�
��'��� ���#��& ��# ��'���# ������� ��# ���	�(�� �� �����(��' ������������ ��# �������#������+ ����(���''�
�� -��� C����& �$� ����+ �-��� #�	�'���# � ��� ��# ��''1��(��	�# J�''��� C��' )��($��& /����� !�
$�� (�������# �� �����	� ��# ����&���� ��� �
�����& ��'��� ���#��& ��#�'�� ��# ��'���# �������+ ��#
�$� ��� J�''��� C��' )��($��& /����� $�� ��$��(�# �$� ������� (�����$����	����� 2$� ,����M�
!2 ������� ��� ��	������� %��"��& ��# �����(��' ���	�(�� ��� �'' ��������# %� �-���+ ��# �-��� $��
(�����%���# ��&����(���'� �� �����	��& �$� ��($��'�&�(�' ���$����(����� �� �$� ,����M� �����(��' ���	�(��
���� 
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%������3 ��� ��2�� ����
�����

C����& �$� ����+ �����	�� ��# ��&���� ������ �� �$�� #�	����� ��� .458 D ��''��� 7���8Q .45; = ��''���<
��# .45:; 8 ��''��� 7���8Q .45� 8 ��''���< �����(��	�'� 2$� #�('��� �� �����	�� �� #�� �� �$� ��(�
�$�� �$� ,����4� ��	������� �������� �� /��%%� H��# 7-�� E����< ��� ��'# �� G��� ���� ���$ � ������
�� .45;= ��''��� %���& ��(��#�# 

��5)���$( "/�  "%�$"� &�#�)& �#

-� �� 89�� C�(��%�� ����+ ����' ����� �� �$� ,���� ��� .459+;6; ��''��� �$�($ ���
�����(�# %� �$���$�'#���M ���# �� .459+��; ��''���+ �������� ��������� �� .45=: ��''��� ��# (������
'��%�'����� �� .4598: ��''��� ��# ���1(������ '��%�'����� �� .459�6 ��''��� 2$� (������ ����� �� �$�
,���� ��� : � 789�� C�(��%�� ���8Q � D< 

C����& �$� ���� ��#�# 89�� C�(��%�� ����+ �$� ,���� ��(��#�# � ��� (��$ ���'�� �� .45�;�
��''��� -� �� 89�� C�(��%�� ����+ (��$ ��# (��$ �0��	�'���� �� �$� ,���� ����'�# �� .458D;
��''��� ,�����& �����+ �
������# �� � ���(����&� �� ����' %�������&� �	�� �$���$�'#���M ���#+
�� � 9; ���� �� �� 89 C�(��%�� ���� 2$� ,���� �#���� � ���#��� �������� ��'�(� 2$� (��$
��# %��" %�'��(�� (�������# �� �%��� 8;> (��$ ��# %��" %�'��(�� ��# :;> �$��� ���� ��
�#
#�������+ ���� �� �$�($ ��� #���������# �� .��& 4��& #�''��� �� �������� ������� �
������
�� �����&� �
($��&� ���"� 

-� �� 89�� C�(��%�� ����+ �$� ,����M� ����' �	��'�%'� %��"��& ��(�'����� �������# �� .45��� 6
��''���+ �� �$�($ .45=� ��''��� ���� ��(���# %� ���&�� ('����� '����# ��(�������+ ��# %��"��&
��(�'����� ��� .45�D 6 ��''��� ���� ��(���# %� �$� �'�#&��& �� .45== ��''��� �� �$� ,����M� ������ 
-� �� 89 C�(��%�� ����+ �$� ,���� ���'���# .459; ��''��� �� ����(���# %��"��& ��(�'����� ��#
�$� ������ $�# %��� ������# ��# �����# �� ;�$ G������ ���; 
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#��/�1� "/$ �/6�#$��/$# "/�  "%�$"� �7%�/��$)&�

!� �$� ���� ����+ �$� ,���� ��#� ��	���' 	��� ��&����(��� ��	�������� !� G��� ����+ �$�
,���� �(0����# 6�> �� )�($� /'�� ,���� @�����#+ �$�($ ���� ��# �������� �$� )�($� /'��
'���&��+ ��� .458;8 ��''��� 2$� (����#������� ��� ����'�# %� ������& �� �$� 	��#��� � ����' ��
9;8+�=6+�:9 �� �$� E������M� �$���� !� �%��� �$� ���� ����+ �$� E������ �(0����# �$� �-���
%������� ��# &���� 7��('�#��&+ ����� �'��+ �� B'�
��< ���� ��� ��%��#����+ I�'�� E��	��&��(�+ ���
.45�= D ��''���+ �$�($ ��� ����'�# %� ������& ��� ��#�%��#���� ���# %� �$� 	��#�� �� �$� E������ 
!� ?�	��%�� ���� ��# *�%����� ���;+ �$� ,���� ���($���# � ����' �� =�> �� ,���� L��#���+
!�	��������+ @�����# 7N,���� L��#���N< ���� /�(��#�#� #� 2������ � C�	������ #� )�(��+
/ - H @ 7N/2C)N< ��� � ����' (����#������� �� .459;: ��''���+ �$�($ ��� ����'�# %� �$� E������4�
������& ��� (��	����%'� ����� �� �$� 	��#�� !� )��($ ���;+ �$� ,���� ������# ���� � ����$��
�&������� ���$ /2C) �� ���($��� �$� '�����M� ��������& 8�> �������� �� ,���� L��#��� ��� .45���
��''��� 2$� ������(���� �� ��%P�(� �� ��#����#��� �$���$�'#���M �����	�'+ ��# ��'' %� ���# ��� %�
�� ����� �� �$� E������M� �$���� �� /2C) F������� �� � /�%�(������� -&������� #���# �8�#
C�(��%�� ����+ �$� E������ �����# � P���� 	������ ���$ FJ@ �� )��($ ���; �� ��#����"� �$�
��� &����& ��# $������'��� %������� �� )�(�� ��# -��� *�''����& �$��+ FJ@ ���# � ��� �� R/59:8
��''��� 7.459 �= %�''���< �� �$� P���� 	������ �� )��($ ���; 

C����& �$� ����+ (�����' �
���#����� �� .4599= ��''��� ��� ��(����# 3� �$�� ������+ .45D� ��''���
��� ���# ��� �$� &����& %������� 
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The directors present their report and the audited accounts of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
The Group’s business is broadly divided into four divisions, namely (i) leisure, gaming and
entertainment division; (ii) investment banking and financial services division; (iii) technology
division; and (iv) property and other investments division. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 2 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and geographical segment is
set out in Note 2 to the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2004 and the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the accounts on pages 41 to 101.

An interim dividend of HK one cent per ordinary share (2003: Nil) was paid to shareholders on
20th October 2004 and the Directors recommend a final dividend of HK one cent per ordinary
share (2003: Nil) payable to shareholders whose names are on the register of members on 18th
May 2005. The total dividend payout for the year ended 31st December 2004 amounted to
HK two cents per ordinary share.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the published results, and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited accounts and reclassified as appropriate,
is set out below. This summary does not form part of the audited accounts.

Results
Year ended 31st December

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 408,076 165,263 82,838 99,409 109,175

Net Profit/(loss) from ordinary
activities attributable to shareholders 65,157 (26,334) (35,596) (18,635) (6,568)

Assets, liabilities and minority interests
31st December

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 1,584,827 674,518 418,769 410,960 445,655
Total liabilities (283,734) (150,844) (18,387) (10,099) (15,702)
Minority interests (75,616) (62,952) (24,257) (26,392) (28,983)

Net assets 1,225,477 460,722 376,125 374,469 400,970
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DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year ended 31st December 2004
amounted to HK$0.6 million.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in the investment properties, and other fixed assets of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during the year, together
with the reasons therefor, are set out in notes 25 and 26 respectively to the accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The turnover attributable to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 34%
of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 60% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year. In particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 35% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the directors, none of the directors of the Company, their associates, or
any shareholders who own more than 5% of the Group’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest at any time during the year in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during the year are set
out in note 27 to the accounts and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s capital reserve in the amount of HK$354,009,192 as at 31st December 2004 may
be distributed upon the fulfillment of certain conditions, which are considered by the Company to
have been fulfilled. In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$567,980,593 as at 31st December 2004 (2003 – HK$49,677,823) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares. Save as disclosed aforesaid, as at 31st December 2004, the
Company had no reserve available for distribution in accordance with the provisions of section
79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:
Dr. Stanley Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Lawrence Ho (Group Managing Director)
Mr. Frank Tsui

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Ho Cheuk Yuet
Mr. Ng Ching Wo (redesignated as non-executive director on 10th September 2004)

Independent non-executive directors:
Sir Roger Lobo
Mr. Robert Kwan
Dr. Lo Ka Shui (appointed on 10th September 2004)

In accordance with Articles 94 and 103(A) of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lawrence
Ho, Mr. Frank Tsui, Mr. Ng Ching Wo and Dr. Lo Ka Shui will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of Mr. Lawrence Ho and Mr. Frank Tsui has a service contract with Melco Services Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, commencing on 1st January 2005 which may be
terminated by either party by written notice of not less than three months.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Scheme” below and in note 26 to the
accounts, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the accounts.

Concerning the share options granted during the year to the directors, employees and others, as
detailed in note 26 to the accounts, the directors do not consider it appropriate to disclose a
theoretical value of the options granted, because in the absence of a readily available market
value for share options on the ordinary shares of the Company, the directors were unable to
arrive at an accurate assessment of the value of the share options.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed in note 31 to the accounts, no director had a significant beneficial interest in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31st December 2004, the interests and short positions of each Director and chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571, the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Director is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or which are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

(i) Interests in Shares of the Company (“Shares”)

Approximate
Number of percentage

Number of underlying of the total
Name of Nature of issued Shares Shares number of
Director interest interested interested issued Shares

(Note 1)

Dr. Stanley Ho Corporate 3,649,228 – 0.79%
(Note 2)

Personal 11,374,639 – 2.46%

Mr. Lawrence Ho Corporate 182,455,599 19,565,216 43.61%
(Note 3) (Note 4)

Personal 1,816,306 – 0.39%

Mr. Frank Tsui Personal 1,800,000 – 0.39%

Mr. Ho Cheuk Yuet Personal 1,816,306 – 0.39%

Dr. Lo Ka Shui Personal 1,000,000 – 0.22%
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Notes:

1. As at 31st December 2004, the total number of issued shares of the Company were
463,244,054 Shares.

2. Dr. Stanley Ho is taken to be interested in 3,649,228 shares as a result of him being beneficially
interested in the entire issued share capital of each of Sharikat Investments Limited, Dareset
Limited and Lanceford Company Limited which in turn hold an aggregate of approximately
0.79% of the issued share capital of the Company.

3. Mr. Lawrence Ho is taken to be interested in 57,754,512 shares as a result of him being
beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Lasting Legend Ltd. which in turn
holds approximately 12.47% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Lawrence Ho is
also taken to be interested in 124,701,087 shares as a result of him being beneficially
interested in 77% of issued share capital of Better Joy Overseas Ltd. (“Better Joy”) which in
turn holds approximately 26.92% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Dr. Stanley Ho and Mr. Lawrence Ho are beneficially interested in 23% and 77% of issued
share capital of Better Joy respectively. If their indirect shareholding interests in the shares
through Better Joy are taken into account, Dr. Stanley Ho and Mr. Lawrence Ho are effectively
interested in 9.43% and 33.59% respectively of the issued share capital of the Company.

4. Two convertible notes respectively due 2005 and 2006 were issued by the Company to Better
Joy on 9 June 2004 pursuant to the Mocha Acquisition Agreements as disclosed in the
announcement and the circular of the Company respectively dated 19 March 2004 and 23
April 2004. As at 31st December 2004, the total outstanding principal amount of the said
convertible notes is HK$45 million. If Better Joy exercises the conversion rights attached to
the said convertible notes in full at the conversion price of HK$2.30 per Share, a total of
19,565,216 Shares will be issued to Better Joy. As Mr. Lawrence Ho is beneficially interested
in 77% of issued share capital of Better Joy under Securities and Futures Ordinance, he is
deemed to be interested in these 19,565,216 underlying Shares.

As mentioned above, Dr. Stanley Ho and Mr. Lawrence Ho are beneficially interested in 23%
and 77% of issued share capital of Better Joy respectively. If this is taken into account, Dr.
Stanley Ho and Mr. Lawrence Ho are effectively interested in 4,500,000 underlying Shares
and 15,065,216 underlying Shares of the Company.
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(ii) Interests in equity derivative of the Company

Number of share options Date of Exercise
Name of At 1st Grant Exercise At 31st grant price Exercise
Category of January during during December of share of share period of
participant 2004 the year the year(1) 2004 options(2) options(3) share options

Directors

Mr. Lawrence Ho – 900,000 – 900,000 19th February HK$2.405 19th February 2005
2004 to 7th March 2012

– 900,000 – 900,000 19th February HK$2.405 19th February 2006
2004 to 7th March 2012

– 1,800,000 – 1,800,000

Mr. Frank Tsui 1,816,306 – (1,800,000) 16,306 8th March HK$1.00 8th September 2002
2002 to 7th March 2012

– 900,000 – 900,000 19th February HK$2.405 19th February 2005
2004 to 7th March 2012

– 900,000 – 900,000 19th February HK$2.405 19th February 2006
2004 to 7th March 2012

1,816,306 1,800,000 (1,800,000) 1,816,306

Mr. Ho Cheuk 1,816,306 – (1,816,306) – 8th March HK$1.00 8th September 2002
Yuet 2002 to 7th March 2012

Mr. Peter So(4) 1,816,306 – (1,816,306) – 8th March HK$1.00 8th September 2002
2002 to 7th March 2012

Total 5,448,918 3,600,000 (5,432,612) 3,616,306

Notes:

(1) No share option has been lapsed or cancelled during the year.

(2) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement of
the exercise period.

(3) The exercise price of the share options, which were granted before 24th September 2003,
was adjusted after the completion of rights issue on 24th September 2003.

(4) Mr. Peter So resigned as an Non-executive Director of the Company on 1st April 2004.
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(iii) Interests in Shares of Value Convergence

Approximate percentage of
Number of the total number of

Name of Nature of issued shares of Value issued shares of
Director interest Convergence interested Value Convergence

Dr. Stanley Ho Corporate 7,384,651 3.10%
(Note 1)

Mr. Lawrence Ho Corporate 4,232,627 1.78%
(Note 2)

Notes:

1. Dr. Stanley Ho is taken to be interested in 7,384,651 shares of Value Convergence as a
result of him being beneficially interested in 65% of the issued share capital of Bailey
Development Limited which in turn holds approximately 3.10% of the issued share capital of
Value Convergence.

2. Mr. Lawrence Ho is taken to be interested in 4,232,627 shares of Value Convergence as a
result of him being beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Golden Mate
Co., Ltd. which in turn holds approximately 1.78% of the issued share capital of Value
Convergence.

(iv) Interest in equity derivatives of Value Convergence

Approximate percentage of
Number of underlying the total number of

Name of Nature of shares of Value issued shares of
Director interest Convergence interested Value Convergence

Dr. Stanley Ho Personal 735,000 0.31%
(Note 1)

Mr. Lawrence Ho Personal 1,226,057 0.51%
(Note 2)

Notes:

1. The personal interest of Dr. Stanley Ho represents his derivative interest in Value Convergence
comprising the physically settled options which were granted on 6th April 2001 and may be
exercised during the period from 6th April 2001 to 8th October 2005 at an exercise price of
HK$3.60 per Value Convergence’s share.

2. The personal interest of Mr. Lawrence Ho represents his derivative interest in Value
Convergence comprising the physically settled options as follows:

(a) 735,000 physically settled options which were granted on 6th April 2001 and may be
exercised during the period from 6th April 2001 to 8th October 2005 at an exercise
price of HK$3.60 per Value Convergence’s share; and

(b) 491,057 physically settled options which were granted on 9th July 2002 and may be
exercised during the period from 9th July 2002 to 8th July 2012 at an exercise price of
HK$1.00 per Value Convergence’s share.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2004, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their respective Associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31st December 2004, so far as if known to the Directors of the Company, the following
persons (other than a director or chief executive of the Company) had interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 an 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Number of underlying the total
Nature of issued Shares Shares number of

Name interest interested interested issued Shares
(Note 1)

Better Joy Corporate 124,701,087 19,565,216 31.14%
(Note 2) (Notes 2 & 4)

Lasting Legend Ltd. Corporate 57,754,512 – 12.47%
(Note 2)

Mr. Lawrence Ho Corporate 182,455,599 19,565,216 43.61%
(Note 3) (Note 4)

Personal 1,816,306 – 0.39%

Shun Tak Shipping Corporate 39,083,147 – 8.44%
Company, Limited

JPMorgan Chase & Co. Corporate 24,630,000 – 5.32%
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Notes:

1. As at the 31st December 2004, the total number of issued shares of the Company are 463,244,054
Shares.

2. The Shares (and underlying Shares) held by Better Joy and Lasting Legend Ltd. also represent the
corporate interest of Mr. Lawrence Ho in the Company.

3. Mr. Lawrence Ho is taken to be interested in 57,754,512 shares as a result of him being beneficially
interested in the entire issued share capital of Lasting Legend Ltd. which in turn holds approximately
12.47% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Lawrence Ho is also taken to be interested
in 124,701,087 shares as a result of him being beneficially interested in 77% of issued share capital
of Better Joy which in turn holds approximately 26.92% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Dr. Stanley Ho and Mr. Lawrence Ho are beneficially interested in 23% and 77% of issued share
capital of Better Joy respectively. If their indirect shareholding interests in the shares through Better
Joy are taken into account, Dr. Stanley Ho and Mr. Lawrence Ho are effectively interested in 9.43%
and 33.59% respectively of the issued share capital of the Company.

4. Two convertible notes respectively due 2005 and 2006 were issued by the Company to Better Joy on
9th June 2004 pursuant to the Mocha Acquisition Agreements as disclosed in the announcement and
the circular of the Company respectively dated 23rd March 2004 and 23rd April 2004. As at 31st
December 2004, the total outstanding principal amount of the said convertible notes is HK$45
million. If Better Joy exercises the conversion rights attached to the said convertible notes in full at
the conversion price of HK$2.30 per Share, a total of 19,565,216 Shares will be issued to Better Joy.
As Mr. Lawrence Ho is beneficially interested in 77% of issued share capital of Better Joy, under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, he is deemed to be interested in these 19,565,216 underlying
Shares.

As mentioned above, Dr. Stanley Ho and Mr. Lawrence Ho are beneficially interested in 23% and
77% of issued share capital of Better Joy respectively. If this is taken into account, Dr. Stanley Ho
and Mr. Lawrence Ho are effectively interested in 4,500,000 underlying Shares and 15,065,216
underlying Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2004, so far as is known to the Directors, there is
no other person who has an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares
(including interests in options, if any) of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
Dr. Stanley Ho and Madam Lucina Laam King Ying, have direct or indirect beneficial interests in
Shun Tak Holdings Limited, its subsidiaries and associates (the “Shun Tak Group”) as shareholders.
In addition, Dr. Stanley Ho has beneficial interests in Sociedade de Turismo e Diversoes de
Macau, its subsidiaries and associates (the “STDM Group”) as shareholders. Further, Dr. Stanley
Ho is a director of the Shun Tak Group and the STDM Group.



Melco International Development Limited Annual Report 2004 35

Report of the Directors

During the year and up to the date of this report, the businesses of property investment and
hospitality (which includes restaurant operations) carried out by the Shun Tak Group and the
STDM Group were considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

Dr. Stanley Ho is actively involved in the management of the Shun Tak Group.

Dr. Stanley Ho is also actively involved in the management of the STDM Group which operates
principally outside Hong Kong.

As the board of directors of the Company is independent of the boards of the Shun Tak Group
and the STDM Group, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on such businesses independently
of, and at an arm’s length from the businesses of these companies.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in note 34 to the
accounts.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected transactions which are
required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. On 19th March 2004, the Company and Value Convergence Holdings Limited (“VCH”), a
67.57% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, put forward a conditional group
reorganization (“Group Reorganization”) which involved the following:–

a) Mocha Acquisition Agreements

The Company had entered into the Mocha Acquisition Agreements separately with
each of Better Joy, Chang Wang and Chang Tan and pursuant to which the Company
had conditionally agreed to buy, and each of Better Joy, Chang Wang and Chang
Tan separately had conditionally agreed to sell, the relevant shares they held in the
capital of Mocha Slot Group Limited (“Mocha”) for an aggregate consideration of
HK$353 million, which had been satisfied by the issue and allotment of 124,701,087,
13,429,348 and 15,347,826 shares of the Company by the Company to Better Joy,
Chang Wang and Chang Tan, respectively. As part of the Better Joy Sale Shares
Agreement, the Company had conditionally agreed to acquire the Better Joy
Shareholders’ Loan (principal amount of HK$45 million unsecured on-demand
shareholders’ loan granted by Better Joy to Mocha and bearing interest at a rate of
4% per annum from the date of grant) from Better Joy, and in consideration therefor,
the Company issued and Better Joy subscribed the convertible notes with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$45 million. The Mocha Acquisition Agreements
together constituted a major transaction of the Company. Better Joy is owned as to
77% by Mr. Lawrence Ho and 23% by Dr. Stanley Ho (both being directors of the
Company, and Mr. Lawrence Ho directly and indirectly is interested in more than
10% of the issued shares of the Company) and, accordingly, the Better Joy Sale
Shares Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company. Completion
of the Mocha Acquisition Agreements took place on 9th June 2004.
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b) iAsia Group Disposal Agreement

The Company and VCH had entered into the iAsia Group Disposal Agreement,
pursuant to which VCH had agreed to sell and the Company had agreed to purchase
the entire issued share capital of iAsia Technology Limited, a company wholly-owned
by VCH and the immediate holding company of, inter alia, Eixir Group Limited, for a
consideration of HK$27.9 million. Since VCH is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, the iAsia Group Disposal Agreement constituted a connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Completion of the iAsia Group Disposal
Agreement took place on 31st May 2004.

Under the iAsia Group Disposal Agreement, VCH had agreed to guarantee to Melco
that the net profit (after tax and minority interest) of the iAsia Group shall not be less
than HK$4 million for the year ending 31 December 2004 (“Guarantee”), failing
which VCH shall compensate the shortfall on a dollar for dollar basis. Since the iAsia
Group had achieved a net profit of more than HK$4 million for the year ended 31st
December 2004 (the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
confirmed that the iAsia Group has fulfilled its obligation under the Guarantee), no
compensation was required to be paid by VCH to the Company under the Guarantee.

Details of the Group Reorganization had been disclosed in the announcements and circular
of the Company dated 23rd March 2004 and 23rd April 2004 respectively.

2. Mocha had conditionally entered into the Equipment Leases (dated 24th July 2003 and 3rd
March 2004, as the case may be) with Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”), being
a subsidiary of Sociedade de Turismo e Diversoes de Macau, S.A.R.L. (“STDM”), for a
period of ten years from the date of the commencement of operation of the relevant
gaming machines at the three different sites under the respective Equipment Leases in
Macau, or ending on the expiry of SJM’s gambling license or the expiry of the tenancy
agreement of the relevant gaming lounge, whichever is the earliest (the “Equipment Leases”).
As it was expected that the transactions contemplated under the Equipment Leases would
extend over a period of time and would take place on a continuing basis, the Equipment
Leases constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules. The amount receivable by the Mocha from SJM under each Equipment Lease is not
fixed, as it comprises a fixed monthly rental and a percentage rent based on a pre-agreed
percentage of the net win from each machine leased thereunder. It was not practicable to
ascertain the net win from each machine. Accordingly, for the purpose of complying with
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules in this regard, the directors of the Company
have estimated (based on the projected annual revenue of the Mocha Group underlying
the appraisal of the fair market value of business enterprises of Mocha as set out in the
appraisal report on Mocha as at 29th February 2004 prepared by American Appraisal
China Limited) that the estimated revenue receivable by the Mocha Group from SJM under
the Equipment Leases will not exceed HK$92 million, HK$153 million and HK$161 million
for each of the three financial years ending 31st December 2006 respectively (“Annual
Caps”). Details of such continuing connected transactions had been disclosed in the
announcement and the circular of the Company dated 1st April 2004, 13th April 2004 and
23rd April 2004 respectively. The Annual Cap of HK$92 million set for the year 2004 was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at its annual general meeting
held on 20th May 2004.
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This continuing connected transaction has been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors have confirmed that
the continuing connected transaction has been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and (c)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and (d) had not exceeded
the relevant Annual Cap referred to above.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed that the continuing connected transaction
(a) had received the approval from the Company’s board of directors; (b) was in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group for transaction with SJM; (c) had been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transaction; and (d) had not
exceeded the relevant Annual Cap.

3. On 6th October 2003, Elixir Group Limited (“Elixir”) (a 77.5% indirectly owned subsidiary of
the Company after completion of the Group Reorganization and a wholly-owned subsidiary
with effect from 16th December 2004) had conditionally entered into a service arrangement
with SJM for the provision of system integration services and related maintenance services
(the “Service Arrangement”) for the respective aggregate amounts of approximately US$6.5
million (HK$50.7 million) and US$0.61 million (HK$4.75 million), which were measured up
to the financial year ending 31st December 2005. After the completion of the iAsia Group
Disposal Agreement, Elixir continued to be a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and would continue to provide information technology services to SJM under the Service
Arrangement. The Service Arrangement remains valid. SJM is a connected person for the
purpose of the Listing Rules by virtue of the fact that Dr. Stanley Ho, who is the Chairman
and Executive Director of the Company, has an equity interest in, as well as being a
director of, SJM and STDM respectively. Accordingly, the Service Arrangement and all
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted connected transaction for the Company.
The provision of the relevant system integration services to SJM by Elixir had been approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 19th November 2003. Details of the Service Arrangement were set
out in the Company’s circular dated 31st October 2003.

4. On 30th July 2004, Elixir entered into another service arrangement, on a conditional basis,
with SJM for the provision of certain information technology related services to SJM (the
“Second Service Arrangement”). Pursuant to the Second Service Arrangement, Elixir had
agreed to provide to SJM such services comprising system integration services for an
aggregate value of about US$3.95 million (HK$30.73 million) and maintenance services for
the aggregate value of about US$0.206 million (HK$1.60 million). SJM is a connected
person for the purpose of the Listing Rules by virtue of the fact that Dr. Stanley Ho, who is
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company, has an equity interest in, as well as
being a director of, SJM and STDM respectively. Accordingly, the Second Service
Arrangement and all transactions contemplated thereunder constituted connected transaction
for the Company. The Second Service Arrangement and all transactions contemplated
thereunder had been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at an
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extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 15th September 2004. Details of
this connected transaction had been disclosed in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 30th July 2004 and 27th August 2004 respectively.

5. On 8th September 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with STDM (“First
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would acquire a 50% equity interest in a joint
venture company, which is now known as Great Wonders, Investments, Limited (“Great
Wonders”), for a consideration of HK$100 million. Great Wonders would apply for the
concession of the Land located at Baixa da Taipa, Macau to be granted to it to develop a
six-star hotel. The Company had agreed to issue a HK$100 million 5-year Convertible
Bond (“Convertible Bond”) to STDM to satisfy the purchase consideration. STDM is a
connected person for the purpose of the Listing Rules by virtue of the fact that Dr. Stanley
Ho, who is the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company, has an equity interest in,
as well as being a director of, STDM. As a result, the First Agreement and the issuance of
the Convertible Bond constituted discloseable and connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The First Agreement and all transactions contemplated thereunder
had been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 2nd November 2004. Details of this discloseable
and connected transaction had been disclosed in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 13th September 2004 and 11th October 2004 respectively. Completion of
the First Agreement took place on 9th November 2004.

6. On 11th November 2004, the Company entered into another agreement with STDM (“Second
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would buy and STDM would sell additional
20% issued share capital of Great Wonders for a consideration of HK$56 million. Melco
would issue a redeemable HK$56 million 5-year convertible bond (“Second Convertible
Bond”) to STDM to satisfy the purchase consideration. STDM is a connected person for the
purpose of the Listing Rules by virtue of the fact that Dr. Stanley Ho, who is the Chairman
and Executive Director of the Company, has an equity interest in, as well as being a
director of, STDM. As a result, the Second Agreement, the issuance of the Second
Convertible Bond constituted a major and connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The Second Agreement and all transactions contemplated thereunder had
been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20th January 2005. Details of this major and connected
transaction had been disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
23rd November 2004 and 5th January 2005 respectively. Completion of the Second
Agreement took place on 8th February 2005 and the Group’s equity interests in Great
Wonders increased from 50% to 70%.

7. On 1st June 2004, Melco Technology Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as purchaser, entered into the agreements (the “Previous Agreements”)
respectively with each of Mr. Gordon Li and Mr. Leong Van Tat (collectivelly the “Vendors”)
for an acquisition of an aggregate of 10% issued share capital of Elixir thereby increasing
the shareholding interests of the Group in Elixir from 77.5% to 87.5%.

On 16th December 2004, Melco Technology Group Limited, further entered into the
agreements (the “Subsequent Agreements”) respectively with each of the Vendors for a
further acquisition of an aggregate of 12.5% issued share capital of Elixir for a total
consideration of HK$120,730. Completion of the Subsequent Agreements had taken place
immediately after the execution of the Subsequent Agreements (the “Previous Agreements”
and the Subsequent Agreements are collectively referred to as the “Acquisition Agreements”).
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The Vendors, being substantial shareholders of Elixir (each holding 11.25% of the issued
share capital of Elixir prior to the completion of the Previous Agreements), are connected
persons for the purpose of the Listing Rules. While the Previous Agreements were regarded
as a connected transaction exempted from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.31(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Acquisition Agreements viewed as a whole constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.32 of the Listing Rules and was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of this
connected transaction had been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
16th December 2004. As a result of the completion of the Group Reorganization and the
Acquisition Agreements, Elixir has become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE
In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with the Code of Best Practice (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (which applied before the amendment of
the Listing Rules relating to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices and Rules on Corporate
Governance Report on 1st January 2005), throughout the accounting period covered by the
annual report, except that the independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for specific terms as required by paragraph 7 of the Code, but are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Confirmation of independence has been received from each of the Independent non-executive
directors of the Company and the Company considers all existing independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has an audit committee which was established in accordance with requirements of
the Code, for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. During the year, the audit committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely Sir Roger Lobo, Mr. Robert Kwan,
and a non-executive director, Mr. Ng Ching Wo.

AUDITORS
The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and will not offer
themselves for re-appointment as auditors in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s auditors at remuneration to be fixed by the Board of
Directors.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Stanley Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7th April 2005
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MELCO INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts of Melco International Development Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”) on pages 41 to 101 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare accounts which give a
true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the
Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31st December 2004 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7th April 2005
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2004 2003
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 2 408,076 165,263

Other revenues 2 8,102 4,267

Other (loss)/income 3 (2,113) 10,186

Cost of inventories sold (157,183) (36,703)
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 10 (107,120) (76,499)
Depreciation of fixed assets (17,683) (16,154)
Amortisation of trading rights (507) (464)
Amortisation of goodwill – (2,614)
Gain on disposal of investment properties 14(d) 57,176 –
Commission expense (50,607) (26,088)
Other operating expenses 31(d) (61,809) (51,968)

Total operating expenses (337,733) (210,490)
-------------- --------------

Operating profit/(loss) 4 76,332 (30,774)

Finance costs 5 (4,199) (2,007)

Profit/(loss) before taxation 72,133 (32,781)

Taxation 6 (2,490) (1,201)

Profit/(loss) after taxation 69,643 (33,982)

Minority interests (4,486) 7,648

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 7 65,157 (26,334)

Dividends 8 8,451 –

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) 9 20.06 (15.89)

Fully diluted earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) 9 18.33 N/A



Melco International Development Limited Annual Report 200442

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31st December 2004

2004 2003
Note(s) HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets

Goodwill 12 389,937 19,705
Trading rights 13 2,786 3,293
Fixed assets 14 204,174 187,916
Investment in a jointly controlled entity 16 100,000 –
Investment securities 17 27,754 20,637
Pledged bank deposits 29 177 304
Long term deposits 14,780 4,219
Other non-current assets 547 4,542

740,155 240,616-------------- --------------
Current assets

Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 16 25,145 –
Inventories 18 3,768 4,137
Trade receivables 19, 31(b) 337,014 236,390
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 31(a), 31(b) 40,919 9,150
Other investments 20 40,641 40,638
Amounts due from related companies 21 1,119 429
Tax recoverable – 387
Certificate of deposit 1,100 –
Bank balances and cash 394,966 142,771

844,672 433,902-------------- --------------
Current liabilities

Trade payables 22 60,462 110,538
Accrued liabilities and other payables 31(c) 35,153 39,575
Taxation payable 1,888 –
Finance lease payable 23 817 –
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 15,000 –
Convertible notes due within one year 24 22,500 –

135,820 150,113-------------- --------------

Net current assets 708,852 283,789-------------- --------------

Total assets less current liabilities 1,449,007 524,405

Financed by:

Share capital 25 463,244 221,997
Reserves 27 762,233 238,725

Shareholders’ funds 1,225,477 460,722

Minority interests 75,616 62,952

Non-current liabilities

Rental deposits – 407
Convertible notes 24 122,500 –
Shareholders’ loan 31(d)(viii) 23,158 –
Deferred tax liabilities 6 2,256 324

1,449,007 524,405
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2004 2003
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets

Fixed assets 14 – –
Interest in subsidiaries 15 918,761 389,624
Investment in jointly controlled entity 16 100,000 –

1,018,761 389,624
-------------- --------------

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 124 673
Bank balances and cash 279,287 15,440

279,411 16,113
-------------- --------------

Current liabilities

Accrued liabilities and other payables 1,108 3,742
Convertible notes due within one year 24 22,500 –

23,608 3,742
-------------- --------------

Net current assets 255,803 12,371
-------------- --------------

Total assets less current liabilities 1,274,564 401,995

Financed by:

Share capital 25 463,244 221,997

Reserves 27 688,820 179,998

Shareholders’ funds 1,152,064 401,995

Non-current liabilities

Convertible notes 24 122,500 –

1,274,564 401,995
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2004 2003
Note(s) HK$’000 HK$’000

Total equity as at 1st January 460,722 376,124

Surplus on revaluation of properties, not recognised
in the profit and loss account 27 – 3,734

Profit/(loss) for the year 27 65,157 (26,334)

Realisation of investment properties revaluation
reserve upon disposal 27 (56,176) –

Issue of rights shares, including share premium 25, 27 – 105,333

Issue of shares, including share premium 25, 27 759,191 –

Share issue expenses 27 (16,576) (2,441)

Exercise of share options 25, 27 16,935 4,306

Dividends paid 8, 27 (3,776) –

Total equity as at 31st December 1,225,477 460,722
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2004 2003
Note(s) HK$’000 HK$’000

Net cash used in operation 28(a) (154,349) (43,931)
Hong Kong profits tax refund/(paid) 849 (877)

Net cash outflow from operating activities (153,500) (44,808)-------------- --------------
Investing activities

Purchase of subsidiaries in 2003 28(c)(ii) – 22,142
Purchase of subsidiaries in 2004 28(c)(i) 10,265 –
Direct expenses incurred for acquisition of

additional interests of subsidiaries in
Technology segment 28(d) (250) –

Proceeds from partial disposal of investment
in a subsidiary – 4,200

Interest income from authorised financial institutions 446 712
Dividend income 938 200
Purchase of fixed assets (49,770) (8,366)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 127 (184)
Proceeds from disposal of investment property 83,000 –
Proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 2,168 326
Purchase of investment securities (4,000) (19,837)
Purchases of other investments less proceeds from

subsequent disposals (2,112) (30,452)
Disposal of other investments acquired in

previous years – 4,000
Increase in amount due from a jointly

controlled entity (25,145) –
Increase in long term deposits (10,561) –
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 405 (3,247)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 5,511 (30,506)-------------- --------------

Net cash outflow before financing (147,989) (75,314)-------------- --------------
Financing activities

Proceeds from exercise of share options 28(b) 16,935 4,306
Proceeds from issue of rights shares 28(b) – 105,333
Proceeds from issue of shares 28(b) 394,680 –
Share issuance expenses 28(b) (16,576) (2,441)
Interest paid (4,199) (2,007)
Repayment of finance lease 28(b) (482) –
Repayment of bank loan 28(b) – (106,335)
Short-term bank borrowings, net 28(b) 15,000 –
Dividend paid (3,776) –
Repayment of former shareholders’ loans 28(b) (24,556) –
Increase in shareholders’ loan 28(b) 23,158 –

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 400,184 (1,144)-------------- --------------

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 252,195 (76,458)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 142,771 219,229

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 394,966 142,771

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash 136,719 125,770
Time deposits with original maturity of less than

three months when acquired 258,247 17,001

394,966 142,771
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out
below:

(a) Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except the other investments and the investment
properties which are carried at fair value as described below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“New HKFRSs”) which are effective
for accounting period beginning on or after 1st January 2005. The Group has not
early adopted these New HKFRSs in the accounts for the year ended 31st December
2004 except for Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard No. 3 “Business
Combination” (“HKFRS 3”), Hong Kong Accounting Standard No. 36 “Impairment of
Assets” (“HKAS 36”) and Hong Kong Accounting Standard No. 38 “Intangible Assets”
(“HKAS 38”). The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
the remaining new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of operations and financial
position.

The early adoption of HKFRS 3 has resulted in a prospective change in the accounting
policy for goodwill and negative goodwill. Up to 31st December 2003, goodwill was
amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of 10 years.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of goodwill is assessed
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. With the adoption of HKFRS
3, the Group has ceased to amortise goodwill from 1st January 2004 and accumulated
amortisation as at 31st December 2003 has been eliminated with a corresponding
decrease in the cost of goodwill. From 1st January 2004 onwards, goodwill is tested
annually for impairment, as well as when there are indications of impairment. The
Group has reassessed the useful lives of its other intangible assets and no adjustment
has resulted from this reassessment.

Up to 31st December 2003, negative goodwill is presented in the same balance
sheet classification as goodwill. To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are identified in the Group’s plan for
the acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised in
the profit and loss account when the future losses and expenses are recognised.
Any remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary
assets acquired, is recognised in the profit and loss account over the remaining
weighted average useful life of those assets; negative goodwill in excess of the fair
values of those non-monetary assets is recognised in the profit and loss account
immediately. From 1st January 2004 onwards, negative goodwill is recognised
immediately to the profit and loss account after assessment of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the business combination.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

The effect of adopting these new policies is set out in Note 1(f) below.

The early adoption of HKAS 36 and HKAS 38 have no material impact to the accounts
of the Group.

The principal accounting policies below have taken into account the adoption of the
new standards.

(b) Consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st December. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the operating
results and net assets of subsidiaries.

(c) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls
the composition of the board of directors, controls more than half of the voting power
or holds more than half of the issued share capital.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(d) Jointly controlled entity
A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over the economic activity. The
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly
controlled entity and goodwill/negative goodwill on acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in jointly controlled entity are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of the jointly controlled
entity are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue from leasing of electronic gaming machines and provision of ancillary
management services to the lessees is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the contractual terms of the respective leasing agreements.

Revenue from the provision of catering services, technology consultation services,
management fees and investment banking and financial services; and underwriting
commission income are recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from sales of computer hardware and software are recognised over the
period of the contract based on the percentage of completion method, which is
measured by reference to the costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract.

Revenue from the sale of other products is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

All transactions related to securities trading, futures and options contracts dealings
and the related commission income are recorded in the accounts based on trade
dates. Accordingly, only those transactions whose trade dates fall within the accounting
period have been taken into account.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Interest income from authorised financial institutions are recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(f) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiaries at the date of acquisition.

Prior to 1st January 2004, goodwill on acquisition is amortised using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life of 10 years. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of goodwill is assessed and written down immediately to
its recoverable amount.

On 1st January 2004, the Group has early adopted HKFRS 3 issued by HKICPA. All
changes in the accounting policies have been made prospectively. There was no
impact on opening retained earnings at 1st January 2004 from the adoption of HKFRS
3. Goodwill amortisation of approximately HK$22,633,000 was not charged for the
year ended 31st December 2004 upon the adoption of HKFRS 3. Instead, goodwill
will be tested at least annually for impairment.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.
Each of those cash-generating units represents the Group’s primary reporting segment.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the goodwill’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired over the cost of
acquisition. As a result of the early adoption of HKFRS 3, the negative goodwill will
be recognised to the profit and loss account.

(g) Trading rights
Trading rights, representing rights to trade on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK”) and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”). They are
stated at cost and amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful
life of 10 years from 6th March 2000, the effective day of the merger of the SEHK,
HKFE and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited.

Trading rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the trading rights’ carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, trading rights are grouped at the lowest levels for which these are
separately identifiable cashflows (cash generating units).

(h) Fixed assets
(i) Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which
construction work and development have been completed and which are held
for their investment potential and rental income being negotiated at arm’s
length.

Investment properties are not depreciated and are stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional valuations performed at the end of
each financial year. Changes in the value of investment properties are dealt
with as movements in the investment property revaluation reserve. If the total
of the reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on a portfolio basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of
the deficit previously charged.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released from
the investment properties revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Fixed assets (continued)

(ii) Construction in progress
Construction in progress are investments in restaurant and vessels on which
construction and renovation work has not been completed. The construction in
progress are carried at cost which includes development and construction
expenditure incurred and other direct costs attributable to the development
less any accumulated impairment losses. On completion, the construction in
progress are transferred to the respective categories of fixed assets at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

(iii) Other fixed assets
Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

(iv) Depreciation
Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of 20 years or
less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the leases.

Leasehold land of other properties is depreciated over the period of the lease
while other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on a
straight- line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Restaurants, vessels, ferries and pontoons 5% to 10%
Long term leasehold land over the lease terms
Long term leasehold buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 20%
Machinery 10%
Motor vehicle 20%

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to
the Group.

(v) Impairment and gain or loss on sale
At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information
are considered to assess whether there is any indication that the tangible and
intangible assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is
recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account except where the asset is
carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation
surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset other than investment properties
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Investments in securities

(i) Investment securities
Investment securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The carrying amounts of individual investments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to assess whether the fair values have declined below the carrying
amounts. When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying
amount of such securities will be reduced to its fair value. The impairment loss
is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account. This impairment
loss is written back to the profit and loss account when the circumstances and
events that led to the write-downs or write-offs cease to exist and there is
persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and events will persist for the
foreseeable future.

(ii) Other investments
Other investments are carried at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the
net unrealised gains or losses arising from the changes in fair value of other
investments are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits or losses on
disposal of other investments, representing the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss
account as they arise.

(j) Inventories
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated on
the first-in, first-out basis, comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less
estimated selling expenses.

(k) Contracts in progress
Contract revenue and contract costs are recognised based on the percentage of
completion method as detailed in note 1(e). When the outcome of a contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. When it is probable total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

The aggregate of the cost incurred and the profit/loss recognised on each contract is
compared against the progress billings up to the year-end. Where costs incurred and
recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the balance is
shown as due from customers on contracts, under current assets. Where progress
billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses), the
balance is shown as due to customers on contracts, under current liabilities. Costs
incurred in the period in connection with future activity on a contract are excluded
and shown as work-in-progress included in inventories.

Amounts due from customers on contracts are included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(l) Trade receivables

Impairment losses are made against trade receivable to the extent they are considered
to be doubtful. Trade receivables in the balance sheet are stated net of such
impairment losses.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes
of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, cash investments with a maturity of three months or
less from date of investment and bank overdrafts.

(n) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

(o) Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund and a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The mandatory provident fund is funded by the Group and the employee. The
defined contribution scheme is funded by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to both retirement benefits schemes are expensed
as incurred. The Group’s mandatory contributions to the mandatory provident
fund are vested immediately. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

(ii) Employee leave and long service payment entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service payment are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long service payment as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time such leave is taken.

(iii) Profit sharing and bonus plans
The expected costs of profit sharing and bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the accounts. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date are used to determine deferred taxation. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

(q) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts,
when necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

(r) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of acquisition. All other borrowing costs are charged to
the profit and loss account in the year in which they are incurred.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Assets under leases

(i) Finance leases (where the Group is a lessee)
Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the
leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term liabilities.
The finance charges are charged to the profit and loss account over the lease
periods.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives.

(ii) Operating leases (where the Group is a lessee)
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
remain with the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received from
the leasing company are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-
line basis over the lease periods.

(iii) Operating leases (where the Group is a lessor)
Assets leased out under operating leases are included in fixed assets in the
balance sheet. They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a
basis consistent with similar owned fixed assets. The basis of revenue
recognition for leasing income is set out in note 1(e) to the accounts.

(t) Translation of foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these cases are
dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The balance sheet of subsidiaries expressed in foreign currencies are translated in
Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date whilst
the profit and loss account is translated at an average rate. Exchange differences in
this case are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

(u) Segregated accounts
Segregated accounts maintained by the Group to hold clients’ monies are treated as
off- balance sheet items. As at 31st December 2004, the Group maintained segregated
accounts with HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKCC”) and the authorised
financial institutions in conjunction with its futures and brokerage businesses as a
result of its normal financial services business transactions with amounts of
HK$1,390,000 (2003: HK$6,116,000) and HK$232,532,000 (2003: HK$249,349,000),
respectively, which are not otherwise dealt with in the accounts.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Legal reserve

All entities incorporated in Macau are required to set aside a minimum of 10% of the
entity’s profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the balance of the legal reserve
reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the entity’s share capital in accordance with the
provisions of the Macau Commercial Code. Such legal reserve represents an amount
set aside from the profit and loss account and is not available for distribution to the
shareholders of the entity.

The appropriation of legal reserve is recorded in accounts in the period in which it is
approved by the board.

(w) Segment reporting
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has determined
that business segments be presented as the primary reporting format and geographical
segments as the secondary reporting format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets comprise all current
and non-current assets and exclude investment properties and investment securities.
Segment liabilities comprise all operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation,
deferred taxation, shareholder’s loan and convertible notes. Capital expenditure
comprises additions to fixed assets including additions resulting from acquisitions
through purchases of subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on the country in
which the customer is located and total assets and capital expenditure are where the
assets are located.

2 TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group’s business can be principally segregated to four segments during the year:

The leisure and entertainment segment, which mainly comprises (a) leasing of electronic
gaming machines and provision of ancillary management services to casino operators in
Macau and (b) provision of catering services.

The technology segment, which mainly comprises (a) provision of gaming technology
consultation services in Macau and (b) development and sale of financial trading and
settlement systems in Asia.

The investment banking and financial services segment (operated through Value
Convergence Holdings Limited), which mainly comprises (a) provision of corporate finance
advisory service, initial public offerings and mergers and acquisition advisory services; and
(b) broking and dealing for clients in securities, futures and options contracts.

The property and other investments segment, which mainly comprises property investments,
other investments and related activities. One of the investment properties of this segment
was disposed of during the year at a gain of approximately HK$57 million.
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2 TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenues recognised during the year are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover
– Leisure and entertainment segment 123,007 54,861
– Technology segment 154,799 29,203
– Investment banking and financial services segment 126,404 75,504
– Property and other investments segment (Note) 3,866 5,695

408,076 165,263
----------------- -----------------

Other revenue
Dividend income 938 200
Management fee from a jointly controlled entity

(Note 31d(xi)) 6,671 –
Others 493 4,067

8,102 4,267
----------------- -----------------

Total revenues 416,178 169,530

Note:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year’s presentation.
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2 TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Primary reporting format – business segments

Year ended/As at 31st December 2004
Investment Property

banking and  and
Leisure and financial other

entertainment Technology services investments Group
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenues

Segment turnover 123,431 169,440 128,634 3,866 425,371
Inter-segment sales (424) (14,641) (2,230) – (17,295)

123,007 154,799 126,404 3,866 408,076

Segment results 5,636 14,504 14,783 65,334 100,257

Unallocated costs (23,925)

Operating profit 76,332

Segment assets 598,842 57,226 433,372 290,633 1,380,073
Investment in jointly controlled entity – – – 100,000 100,000
Unallocated assets 104,754

Total assets 1,584,827

Segment liabilities 24,325 22,497 62,675 1,935 111,432
Unallocated liabilities 172,302

Total liabilities 283,734

Other segment information:
Depreciation of fixed assets 11,519 591 4,390 1,183 17,683
Amortisation of trading rights – – 507 – 507
Reversal of impairment of

investment securities – – – (3,117) (3,117)
Negative goodwill – 1,204 – – 1,204
Capital expenditures 114,520 422 669 1,098 116,709
Goodwill 361,427 8,805 – – 370,232
Impairment of doubtful receivables – 323 1,587 – 1,910
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2 TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended/As at 31st December 2003

Investment
banking and Property and

Leisure and financial other
entertainment Technology services investments Group

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenues
Segment turnover 55,143 29,506 75,504 5,695 165,848
Inter-segment sales (282) (303) – – (585)

54,861 29,203 75,504 5,695 165,263

Segment results (11,713) (9,413) 3,005 2,258 (15,863)

Unallocated costs (14,911)

Operating loss (30,774)

Segment assets 33,596 25,662 389,105 46,131 494,494
Unallocated assets 180,024

Total assets 674,518

Segment liabilities 8,246 23,323 113,443 5,508 150,520
Unallocated liabilities 324

Total liabilities 150,844

Other segment information:
Depreciation of fixed assets 4,324 6,277 3,615 1,938 16,154
Amortisation of trading rights – – 464 – 464
Amortisation of goodwill – – 2,614 – 2,614
Capital expenditures 312 12,980 11,359 2,192 26,843
Impairment of assets – 3,080 – 1,200 4,280
Impairment of doubtful receivables – 122 1,934 – 2,056



Melco International Development Limited Annual Report 2004 59

Notes to the Accounts

2 TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Secondary reporting format – geographical segments

Year ended 31st December 2004/
As at 31st December 2004

Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong 209,327 79,519 1,236,304 23,551
The People’s Republic of

China excluding Hong Kong
and Macau (“PRC”) 263 (2,502) 2,333 963

Macau 198,486 23,240 218,436 92,195

408,076 100,257 1,457,073 116,709

Unallocated costs (23,925)

Operating profit 76,332

Investment in a jointly
controlled entity 100,000

Investment Securities 27,754

Total assets 1,584,827

Year ended 31st December 2003/
As at 31st December 2003

Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong 144,901 (15,715) 631,548 24,504
The PRC – (501) 614 564
United Kingdom – – 992 –
Macau 20,362 353 20,727 1,775

165,263 (15,863) 653,881 26,843

Unallocated costs (14,911)

Operating loss (30,774)

Investment securities 20,637

Total assets 674,518
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3 OTHER (LOSS)/INCOME
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Realised (loss)/gain on trading of other investments (3,425) 9,228
Unrealised gain on holding of other investments 1,312 958

Total (2,113) 10,186

4 OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Operating profit/(loss) is stated after crediting and charging the following:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Crediting

Rental income
Gross 4,178 5,467
Outgoings (82) (84)

Net of outgoings 4,096 5,383

Gain on disposal of investment properties 56,176 –
Gain on disposal of other fixed assets 1,400 –
Reversal of impairment of investment securities 3,117 –
Negative goodwill 1,204 –

Charging

Loss on disposal of other fixed assets – 478
Impairment of fixed assets – 3,080
Impairment of investment securities – 1,200
Impairment of doubtful receivables 1,910 2,056
Operating leases in respect of land and buildings 9,342 6,009
Auditors’ remuneration 2,298 674
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5 FINANCE COSTS
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years 3,043 1,967

Interest expense on finance lease 27 –
Interest on a shareholder’s loan (Note 31(d)(viii)) 23 –
Interest on former shareholders’ loans 95 –
Interest on convertible notes (Note 31(d)(ix)) 1,011 –
Others – 40

4,199 2,007

6 TAXATION
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss account represents:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Current taxation:
– Hong Kong profits tax 1,668 354
– (Over)/under provisions in prior years (848) 523
Deferred taxation relating to the origination and

reversal of timing differences 1,670 324

Taxation charges 2,490 1,201
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6 TAXATION (continued)
The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before taxation differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the Hong Kong taxation rate as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit/(loss) before taxation 72,133 (32,781)

Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) 12,623 (5,737)
Effect of different taxation rates in Macau (392) 5
Income not assessable for taxation purposes (9,463) –
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 89 457
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (5,536) (71)
(Over)/under provision of current taxation in prior years (848) 523
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising

from estimated tax losses 6,017 6,024

Taxation charge 2,490 1,201

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.

The major components of the net deferred tax liabilities provided for at the balance sheet
date are as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 1st January 324 –
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 28(c)(i)) 262 –
Charged to profit and loss account 1,670 324

2,256 324
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6 TAXATION (continued)
The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year is as follows:

Accelerated
tax depreciation Others Total

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st January – – 324 – 324 –
Acquisition of

subsidiary
(note 28(c)(i)) 262 – – – 262 –

Charged/(credited)
to profit and
loss account 1,994 – (324) 324 1,670 324

At 31st December 2,256 – – 324 2,256 324

The major components of the net deferred liabilities/(assets) not provided for at the balance
sheet date are as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accelerated depreciation allowances 2,998 3,147
Tax losses (63,095) (78,101)

(60,097) (74,954)

Company
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accelerated depreciation allowances – –
Tax losses (2,076) (2,513)

(2,076) (2,513)

The above tax losses of the Group and the Company were available for carry forward but
subject to the approval of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and the tax bureau
in Macau. These tax losses have no expiry date.
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7 PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the company to
the extent of a loss of HK$5,705,000 (2003: loss of HK$8,685,000).

8 DIVIDENDS
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interim dividends – HK$0.01 (2003: Nil)
per ordinary share 3,776 –

Final dividends – Proposed HK$0.01 (2003: Nil)
per ordinary share (Note) 4,675 –

8,451 –

Note: At a board of directors meeting held on 7th April 2005, the directors proposed a final dividend
of HK$0.01 per ordinary share of the year 2004. This proposed dividend has not been
reflected as a dividend payable in the accounts and will be reflected as an appropriation for
the year ending 31st December 2005.

9 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share are based on (i) the Group’s net profit/
(loss) attributable to shareholders of HK$65,157,000 (2003: loss of HK$26,334,000), and
(ii) 324,834,445 (2003: 165,762,626) weighted average ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The calculations of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December 2004 are
based on (i) the adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$65,991,000 which is the net profit attributable to the shareholders for the year adjusted
for interest expense of approximately HK$834,000, and (ii) 324,834,445 ordinary shares
which is the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the
weighted average of 16,340,475 ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration
if all outstanding share options with dilutive effect on basic earnings/(loss) per share had
been exercised and the weighted average number of 18,799,001 ordinary shares deemed
to be issued if all the convertible notes have been converted into ordinary shares since
their issuance.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st December 2003 has not been presented
as the conversion of potential ordinary shares would have anti-dilutive effect to the basic
loss per share.
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10 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Wages, salaries and staff welfare 103,210 73,336
Unutilised annual leave (17) 1,086
Termination benefits 810 1,175
Social security costs 54 –
Provision for long service payment (118) (27)
Pension costs – defined contribution plans 3,390 3,056
Forfeiture of pension contribution (209) (2,127)

107,120 76,499

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors (including ex-director) of
the Company during the year are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees
Executive Directors 10 10
Independent Non-executive Directors 869 854
Non-executive Directors 109 87

988 951
----------------- -----------------

Other emoluments:
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other

allowances and benefits in kind
Executive Directors 3,628 3,557
Independent Non-executive Directors – –
Non-executive Directors – –
Retirement benefits scheme contributions
Executive Directors 24 27
Independent Non-executive Directors – –
Non-executive Directors – –

3,652 3,584
----------------- -----------------

4,640 4,535

During the year, 3,600,000 (2003: nil) share options were granted to directors of the
Company in respect of their services provided to the Group, further details of which
are set out in note 26 to the accounts. No value in respect of the share options
granted during the year has been charged to the profit and loss account, or is
otherwise included in the above directors’ emoluments disclosure.
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, one new Independent Non-executive Director has been appointed
and one Independent Non-executive Director has been re-designated as Non-
executive Director. None of the three existing Independent Non-executive Directors
received any emoluments except for director fees of approximately HK$300,000
(2003: HK$300,000), HK$300,000 (2003: HK$300,000) and HK$62,000 (2003: nil),
which were paid to each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors respectively
during the year ended 31st December 2004. The director fee paid to the Independent
Non-executive Director re-designated was approximately HK$207,000 (2003:
HK$254,000).

During the year, one Non-executive Director had resigned and one Independent
Non-executive Director has been re-designated as Non-executive Director. None of
the two existing Non-executive Directors received any emoluments except for director
fees of approximately HK$50,000 (2003: HK$50,000) and HK$46,000 (2003: nil),
which were paid to each of the two Non-executive Directors respectively during the
year ended 31st December 2004. The director fee paid to the Non-executive Director
resigned was approximately HK$13,000 (2003: HK$37,000).

One (2003: One) Executive Director of the Company received director fee of
approximately HK$10,000 (2003: HK$10,000). Another two (2003: two) Executive
Directors received emoluments of approximately HK$1,729,000 (2003: HK$1,729,000)
and HK$1,899,000 (2003: HK$1,729,000) during the year ended 31st December
2004. One Executive Director has been re-designated as Non-executive Director for
the year ended 31st December 2003, for which the emolument paid to the Executive
Director re-designated was approximately HK$99,000.

All these emoluments were included in the Directors’ emoluments as disclosed above.

The emoluments of the directors (including ex-director) fell within the following bands:

Number of directors
2004 2003

Emolument bands
HK$nil – HK$1,000,000 7 6
HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 2 2
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year
include two (2003: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2003: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances and benefits in kind 7,407 7,602

Retirement benefits scheme contributions 35 28

7,442 7,630

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

2004 2003

Emolument bands
HK$1,000,001 – HK$1,500,000 1 1
HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 – 1
HK$2,500,001 – HK$3,000,000 1 –
HK$3,000,001 – HK$3,500,000 1 –
HK$4,000,001 – HK$4,500,000 – 1

(c) During the year, no (2003: nil) directors or the above highest paid individuals waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments. No (2003: nil) emoluments have been paid to
the directors of the Company or the above highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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12 GOODWILL
HK$’000

Year ended 31st December 2004
Opening net book amount (Note) 19,705
Acquisition of Mocha Slot Group Limited

(“Mocha Slot”) (Note 28(c)(i)) 361,427
Goodwill arising from acquisition of additional

interests of subsidiaries in Technology segment (Note 28(d)) 8,805

Closing net book amount 389,937

At 31st December 2004
Cost 389,937
Accumulated impairment –

Net book amount 389,937

At 31st December 2003
Cost 22,319
Accumulated amortisation (2,614)

Net book amount 19,705

Note:

Upon adoption of HKFRS 3, cost and accumulated amortisation of goodwill are offset by the same
amount of approximately HK$2,614,000 and the net amount of approximately HK$19,705,000 was
stated as the cost of goodwill.

Goodwill was presented together with the trading rights as intangible assets as at 31st December
2003. As a result of the adoption of HKFRS3, goodwill and trading rights are presented separately in
the balance sheet and amortization charges were also reclassified to provide a better presentation
of the results of the Group.
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13 TRADING RIGHTS
HK$’000

Year ended 31st December 2004
Opening net book amount 3,293
Amortisation charge (507)

Closing net book amount 2,786

At 31st December 2004
Cost 3,757
Accumulated amortisation (971)

Net book amount 2,786

At 31st December 2003
Cost 3,757
Accumulated amortisation (464)

Net book amount 3,293
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14 FIXED ASSETS
Group

Restaurant
vessels, Leasehold Furniture,

Investment ferries and land and Leasehold fixtures and Gaming Motor Construction
properties pontoons buildings improvements equipment machine vehicle in progress Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost or valuation

At 1st January 2004 159,000 43,665 614 7,477 90,585 – – – 301,341
Acquisition of

subsidiaries
(Note 28(c)(i)) – – – 3,829 16,983 43,637 – – 64,449

Additions – 7,475 – 6,093 9,262 17,137 263 12,030 52,260
Transfers – 11,545 – 134 (134 ) – – (11,545 ) –
Written off – – – – (17,763 ) – – – (17,763 )
Disposals (82,000 ) (135 ) (474 ) – (2,367 ) – – – (84,976 )

At 31st December 2004 77,000 62,550 140 17,533 96,566 60,774 263 485 315,311
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- --------------

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 2004 – 34,970 189 2,091 76,175 – – – 113,425
Charge for the year – 1,989 5 4,060 7,944 3,659 26 – 17,683
Written off – – – – (17,763 ) – – – (17,763 )
Disposals – (17 ) (142 ) – (2,049 ) – – – (2,208 )

At 31st December 2004 – 36,942 52 6,151 64,307 3,659 26 – 111,137
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- --------------

Net book value

At 31st December 2004 77,000 25,608 88 11,382 32,259 57,115 237 485 204,174

At 31st December 2003 159,000 8,695 425 5,386 14,410 – – – 187,916
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14 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(a) The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st December 2004 of the above assets is

as follows:

Group
Restaurant

vessels, Leasehold Leasehold Furniture,
Investment ferries and land and improve– fixtures and Gaming Motor Construction
properties pontoons buildings ments equipment machine vehicle in progress Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At cost – 62,550 140 17,533 96,566 60,774 263 485 238,311
At valuation 77,000 – – – – – – – 77,000

77,000 62,550 140 17,533 96,566 60,774 263 485 315,311

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st December 2003 of the above assets is
as follows:

Restaurant
vessels, Leasehold Furniture,

Investment ferries and land and Leasehold fixtures and Gaming Motor Construction
properties pontoons buildings improvements equipment machine vehicle in progress Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At cost – 43,665 614 7,477 90,585 – – – 142,341
At valuation 159,000 – – – – – – – 159,000

159,000 43,665 614 7,477 90,585 – – – 301,341

(b) At 31st December 2004, the net book value of fixed assets for the Group under
finance lease amounted to HK$2,120,000 (2003: Nil).

(c) The Group’s investment properties and leasehold land and buildings are located in
Hong Kong and are held under long term leases.

(d) The Group’s investment properties comprising: 509 car parking spaces located on
the lower basement, basement and G/F to 5/F of Jumbo Court Public Carpark, 3
Welfare Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong, were revalued on an open market, existing
tenancy basis by FPDSavills, an independent firm of professional valuers, as at 31st
December 2004 at HK$77,000,000 (2003: HK$77,000,000). During the year, the
investment properties of a residential building located at 5 Tung Shan Terrace, Stubbs
Road, Hong Kong were disposed to a third party at a consideration of HK$83 million
and gain on disposal of investment properties amounted to HK$57,176,000 was
realised and recorded to the profit and loss account.
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14 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(e) The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases

arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years. As at 31st
December 2004, the Group had future aggregate minimum leases receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Not later than one year 2,107 3,396
Later than one year and not later than five years 387 1,953

2,494 5,349

(f) At 31st December 2004, the investment properties with net book value of
HK$77,000,000 (2003: HK$82,000,000) were pledged as security for one of the
subsidiaries of the Group as banking facilities.

Company
Furniture,

fixtures and
equipment

HK$’000

Cost

At 1st January 2004 and 31st December 2004 6
------------

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 2004 6
Charge for the year –

At 31st December 2004 –
------------

Net book value

At 31st December 2004 –

At 31st December 2003 –
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Investments at cost:
Unlisted shares (note a) 29,394 390
Provision for impairment – (390)

29,394 –

Due from subsidiaries (note b) 1,272,191 707,864
Provision for amounts due from subsidiaries (315,235) (308,742)
Due to subsidiaries (note b) (67,589) (9,498)

918,761 389,624

Note:

(a) Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the accounts.

(b) Included in amounts due from subsidiaries are i) loans to a subsidiary of HK$218.9 million
which are unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate minus two per cent per annum or HIBOR
plus 1.25 – 2 per cent per annum and repayable upon written notice given from the Company;
ii) loans to a subsidiary of HK$93.1 million which are unsecured, interest bearing at four per
cent per annum and have no fixed terms of repayment. Other amounts due from/(to)
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

16 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
Group and Company

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost (Note a and b) 485 –
Prepayment to Sociedade de Turismo e

Diversões de Macau, S.A.R.L. (“STDM”) (Note b) 99,515 –

100,000 –
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16 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY (continued)
(a) The following is the details of the jointly controlled entity:

Principal Percentage of
Place of  activities and Particulars of interest in

Name incorporation place of operation issued shares held ownership

Great Wonders, Macau Provision of hotel 10,000 ordinary 50%
Investment, management and  shares of
Limited entertainment complex MOP100 each
(“Great Wonders”) in Macau

(b) On 8th September 2004, the Company entered into an agreement (“First agreement”)
with STDM to acquire 50% equity interests of Great Wonders at a consideration of
HK$100 million. The consideration was satisfied by issuing the convertible bond (see
Note 24(b)). Great Wonders has applied to the Macau Government for the concession
of a parcel of land located in Taipa, Macau (the “Land”) and to develop the Land into
a six-star hotel and entertainment complex (pending government approval) with one
of the largest casino and electronic gaming machine areas. Unless the concession
of the Land is granted to Great Wonders on or before 1st September 2005, the
Company has the right to terminate the convertible bond and the convertible bond
will cease to be payable immediately. The Company shall forthwith transfer the 50%
equity interest in Great Wonders back to STDM.

Following the acquisition under the First Agreement, the Company entered into another
agreement (“Second Agreement”) with STDM on 11th November 2004 pursuant to
which the Company acquired an additional 20% issued share capital of Great Wonders
from STDM at a consideration of HK$56 million. The consideration was satisfied by
issuing the convertible bond. The Second Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at its extraordinary general meeting held
on 20th January 2005 and no adjustment was made to the accounts as at 31st
December 2004.

Subsequent to the further acquisition of interest in Great Wonders under the Second
Agreement, the Company entered into the third agreement (“Third Agreement”) with
STDM on 17th March 2005 pursuant to which the Company will acquire and STDM
will sell the remaining 30% equity interests in Great Wonders held by STDM at a
consideration of HK$400 million. Completion of the Third Agreement is conditional
on the approval of the independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
meeting.
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17 INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Group

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted equity investments, at cost 26,499 26,499
Unlisted debt investment, at cost 4,000 –
Impairment losses (2,745) (5,862)

27,754 20,637
----------------- -----------------

Listed equity investment in Hong Kong, at cost 4,250 4,250
Impairment losses (4,250) (4,250)

Total 27,754 20,637

18 INVENTORIES
Group

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Food and beverages 2,389 2,268
Consumable stores 98 52
Merchandise 1,281 1,776
Work in progress – 41

3,768 4,137

At 31st December 2004, no inventory was carried at net realisable value (2003: nil).

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Group

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade receivables (excluding receivables balance
arising from margin clients securities transactions) 171,681 99,144

Impairment of doubtful receivables (323) –

171,358 99,144

Trade receivables arising from margin clients
securities transactions (Note b) 165,656 137,246

337,014 236,390
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aging analysis of trade receivables (excluding the receivables balance arising from
margin clients securities transactions) is as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 157,881 94,499
31-90 days 10,624 3,376
Over 90 days 3,176 1,269

171,681 99,144

(a) The Group’s Leisure and entertainment segment and the Property and other
investments segment are largely operated on cash on delivery or payment in advance
terms, except for those well-established customers to whom credit terms of 30 to 90
days would be granted.

(b) Trade receivable arising from the ordinary course of business of broking in securities
and equity options transactions and dealing in futures and options in the investment
banking and financial services segment as at 31st December 2004 amounted to
approximately HK$306,189,000 (2003: HK$235,922,000). The settlement terms of
the trade receivables arising from the ordinary course of business of broking in
securities and equity options transactions are usually two trading days after the
trade date of the those transactions; and the trade receivables arising from the
ordinary course of business of dealing in futures and options contracts transactions
are generally due on demand.

Loans to margin clients are secured by client’s pledged securities, repayable on
demand and bear interest at commercial rates. No aging analysis on margin client’s
receivables is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging analysis is not
meaningful in view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing.

(c) Other trade receivables on the Group’s Technology segment are due immediately
from date of billing but the Group and the Company will generally grant a normal
credit period of 30 days on average to its customers.

20 OTHER INVESTMENTS
Group

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at market value 40,641 40,638
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21 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

STDM (note a) 519 429
Gold Carousel Investment Limited (“GCIL”) (note b) 600 –

1,119 429

Notes:

(a) The amount due from STDM, a related company of which Dr. Stanley Ho and Madam Winnie
Ho Yuen Ki are director and ex-director and/or have direct and/or indirect beneficial interests,
represented receivables in respect of the sales of souvenirs by the Group (note 31(d)(iv)).

(b) The amount due from GCIL, a related company of which Dr. Stanley Ho is a director,
represented receivables in respect of the management services provided by one of the
subsidiaries of the Group (note 31(d)(vii)).

22 TRADE PAYABLES
Group

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables
Within 30 days 14,313 6,562
31-90 days 4,459 3,416
Over 90 days 5,224 396

23,996 10,374

Trade payables arising from the ordinary course
of business of dealing in securities transactions (Note) 36,466 100,164

60,462 110,538

Note:

The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the ordinary course of business of dealing in
securities transactions for the Investment banking and financial services segment are usually two
trading days after trade date. These trade payables are repayable on demand. Therefore, no aging
analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging analysis is not meaningful in view
of all these accounts payable are promptly settled two trading days after trade date.
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23 FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Finance lease liability – minimum lease payments:

Within one year 837 –

Future finance charges on finance lease (20) –

Present value of finance lease payable 817 –

The present value of finance lease payable was as follows:

Within one year 817 –

24 CONVERTIBLE NOTES
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Convertible note due 30th June 2005
(“2005 Convertible Note”) at par (Note a) 22,500 –

Convertible note due 30th June 2006
(“2006 Convertible Note”) at par (Note a) 22,500 –

Convertible note due 8th November 2009
(“2009 Convertible Note”) at par (Note b) 100,000 –

Subtotal 145,000 –

Less: current portion (22,500) –

Long-term portion 122,500 –

Note:

(a) On 9th June 2004 (“1st Date of Issuance”), the Company issued at par the 2005 Convertible
Note and 2006 Convertible Note with principal amount of HK$22,500,000 and HK$22,500,000
respectively, which are interest-bearing at 4% per annum. The convertible notes were issued
to partially replace the shareholders’ loans of Mocha Slot acquired by the Company during
the year.

The 2005 Convertible Note and 2006 Convertible Note are convertible into fully paid ordinary
shares of HK$1 each of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$2.3 per share since
the 1st Date of Issuance until, and including, the day immediately before 30th June 2005 and
30th June 2006 respectively.
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24 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
(b) On 9th November 2004 (“2nd Date of Issuance”), the Company issued at par the 2009

Convertible Note with principal amount of HK$100,000,000, which is interest-bearing at 4%
per annum. The convertible note was issued for the purpose of developing the Land which
will consist of a six star hotel with casino and electronic gaming machine lounge (see Note
16(b)).

The 2009 Convertible Note is convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of HK$1 each of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$4.0 per share convertible in the period
commencing 3 years from the 2nd Date of Issuance until, and including, the day immediately
before 8th November 2009.

(c) As at 31st December 2004, none of the convertible notes had been converted into the
ordinary shares of the Company.

25 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
No. of shares Amount

’000 HK$’000

At 1st January 2003 and at 1st January 2004 480,000 480,000
Increase in authorised ordinary share capital (note a) 220,000 220,000

At 31st December 2004 700,000 700,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

No. of shares Amount
’000 HK$’000

At 1st January 2003, ordinary shares of HK$1 each 145,287 145,287
Issue of rights shares (note b) 72,644 72,644
Exercise of share options (note 26) 4,066 4,066

At 31st December 2003, ordinary shares of HK$1 each 221,997 221,997

At 1st January 2004, ordinary shares of HK$1 each 221,997 221,997
Issue of shares (note c) 229,378 229,378
Exercise of share options (note 26) 11,869 11,869

At 31st December 2004, ordinary shares of HK$1 each 463,244 463,244
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25 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Note:

(a) By an ordinary resolution passed on 20th May 2004, the authorised ordinary share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$480,000,000 to HK$700,000,000 by the creation of
220,000,000 new shares of HK$1 each.

(b) In September 2003, the company issued 75,643,567 rights shares of HK$1 each at a price of
HK$1.45 per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every two ordinary shares in
issue. Proceeds of approximately HK$105.3 million before issuance expenses were raised.

(c) On 9th June 2004, 153,478,261 ordinary shares of HK$1 each were issued at a price of
HK$2.375 per share for a total consideration of HK$364,511,000 before related expenses for
the acquisition of Mocha Slot during the year (see Note 28(c)(i) for details).

In addition, on 29th October 2004, 75,900,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each were issued at
a price of HK$5.2 per share by way of placement for a total consideration of HK$394,680,000
before related expenses for the purpose of funding its operations under Leisure and
entertainment segment.

(d) On 7th April 2005, the board of directors of the Company proposed that each of the existing
issued and unissued shares of HK$1 each in the share capital be subdivided into two subdivided
shares of HK$0.5 each.

26 SHARE OPTION
(a) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme included the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, executives, employees,
consultants, professionals and other advisers of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 8th March 2002 following its approval by the Company’s shareholders at
an extraordinary general meeting on the same date and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of share of the Company which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
must not exceed 30% of the total issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of the Company’s shares in issue as at 19th November 2003, which
was the date when scheme mandate limit of the Scheme was last refreshed, i.e.
22,199,700 shares of HK$1.00 each. The Company may seek approval of the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the
Scheme save that the total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme under the limit as
“refreshed” may not exceed 10% of the total number of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of approval of the limit. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.
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26 SHARE OPTION (continued)
(a) Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

Share options granted to directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted to such person within any 12-month period
being more than 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 14 days from the date
of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than the expiry date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not
be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s share on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer of
the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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26 SHARE OPTION (continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year
ended 31st December 2004:

Share price

At Granted Exercised At at date Exercise

Category of 1st January during during the 31st December Date of grant of grant of share price of share

participant 2004 the year year 2004 of share options 1 options options 3

Directors4,5 5,448,918 – (5,432,612 ) 16,306 8th March 2002 HK$0.82 2 HK$1.00 2

Directors6 – 3,600,000 – 3,600,000 19th February 2004 HK$2.35 HK$2.405

Sub-total 5,448,918 3,600,000 (5,432,612 ) 3,616,306

Employees 750,002 – (750,002 ) – 8th March 2002 HK$0.82 2 HK$1.00 2

Employees7 3,457,670 – (1,230,000 ) 2,227,670 13th September 2002 HK$1.1067 2 HK$1.1067 2

Employees8 – 8,170,000 – 8,170,000 19th February 2004 HK$2.35 HK$2.405

Employees9 – 3,900,000 (1,966,000 ) 1,934,000 17th September 2004 HK$3.375 HK$3.375

Sub-total 4,207,672 12,070,000 (3,946,002 ) 12,331,670

Others10 4,440,172 – (2,490,172 ) 1,950,000 13th September 2002 HK$1.1067 2 HK$1.1067 2

Others11 – 1,000,000 – 1,000,000 19th February 2004 HK$2.35 HK$2.405

Others12 – 4,500,000 – 4,500,000 17th September 2004 HK$3.375 HK$3.375

Sub-total 4,440,172 5,500,000 (2,490,172 ) 7,450,000

Total 14,096,762 21,170,000 (11,868,786 ) 23,397,976

Notes:

1 The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement
of the exercise period.

2 The number of share options granted, the share price at grant date and the exercise
price of the share options were adjusted upon completion of the rights issue in 24th
September 2003.

3 As at 31st December 2004, the Company had 23,397,976 share options outstanding
under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 23,397,976 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of approximately
HK$23,398,000 and share premium of approximately HK$33,668,000 before issue
expenses.
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26 SHARE OPTION (continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (continued)

4 Mr. Peter So, who exercised 1,816,306 physically settled options on 19th February
2004, resigned on 1st April 2004.

5 As at 31st December 2004, 16,306 physically settled options may be exercised during
the period from 8th September 2002 to 7th March 2012.

6 Among 3,600,000 physically settled options as at 31st December 2004, 1,800,000
physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 19th February 2005
to 7th March 2012 and 1,800,000 physically settled options may be exercised during
the period from 19th February 2006 to 7th March 2012.

7 Among 2,227,670 physically settled options as at 31st December 2004, 1,113,835
physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 13th September
2002 to 7th March 2012 and 1,113,835 physically settled options may be exercised
during the period from 13th March 2003 to 7th March 2012.

8 Among 8,170,000 physically settled options as at 31st December 2004, 4,060,000
physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 19th February 2005
to 7th March 2012 and 4,110,000 physically settled options may be exercised during
the period from 19th February 2006 to 7th March 2012.

9 Among 1,934,000 physically settled options as at 31st December 2004, 400,000
physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 1st December 2004
to 7th March 2012, 600,000 physically settled options may be exercised during the
period from 17th March 2005 to 7th March 2012, 594,000 physically settled options
may be exercised during the period from 17th September 2005 to 7th March 2012,
175,000 physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 17th
September 2006 to 7th March, 2012 and 165,000 physically settled options may be
exercised during the period from 17th March 2008 to 7th March 2012.

10 Among 1,950,000 physically settled options as at 31st December 2004, 974,999
physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 13th September
2003 to 7th March 2012 and 975,001 physically settled options may be exercised
during the period from 13th September 2004 to 7th March 2012.

11 Among 1,000,000 physically settled options as at 31st December 2004, 500,000
physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 19th February 2005
to 7th March 2012 and 500,000 physically settled options may be exercised during the
period from 19th February 2006 to 7th March 2012.

12 Among 4,500,000 physically settled options as at 31st December 2004, 2,250,000
physically settled options may be exercised during the period from 17th March 2005 to
7th March 2012 and 2,250,000 physically settled options may be exercised during the
period from 17th September 2005 to 7th March 2012.
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26 SHARE OPTION (continued)
(b) Share options schemes of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (“Value

Convergence”), subsidiary of the Company
(i) Pre-IPO share options plan

As at 31st December 2004, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 5,868,698
underlying Shares granted on 6th April 2001 (“Pre-IPO Share Options”) pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Options plan adopted by Value Convergence on 14th
March 2001 (“Pre-IPO Share Options Plan”) at an exercise price of HK$3.6
per share (after adjustment arising from the issue of rights and bonus shares
and capital reorganisation on 5th February 2003 and 28th May 2003
respectively) were outstanding, which represents 2.5% (2003: 4.1%) of the
shares of Value Convergence in issue as at 31st December 2004. The exercise
price represents a discount of 30% of the adjusted IPO offer price. The Pre-
IPO Share Options have duration of approximately 4.5 years from the date of
grant, i.e. between 6th April 2001 to 8th October 2005. According to the Pre-
IPO Share Options Plan, any Pre-IPO Share Options granted shall lapse upon
the expiration of 3 months after the relevant grantee ceases to be employed
by the Value Convergence Group. The following are details of the outstanding
Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31st December 2004 (after adjustments arising
from the issue of rights and bonus shares and capital reorganisation on 5th
February 2003 and 28th May 2003 respectively):

As at 31st December 2004 As at 31st December 2003
No. of underlying No. of underlying

Shares to be Shares to be
issued upon issued upon

the exercise of the exercise of
Total no. of the Pre-IPO Total no. the Pre-IPO

grantees Share Options of grantees Share Options

Categories of grantees
Directors of the Company 3 4,606,510 5 8,478,020
Employees 3 1,262,188 3 1,262,188

Total 6 5,868,698 8 9,740,208
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26 SHARE OPTION (continued)
(b) Share options schemes of Value Convergence Holdings Limited, subsidiary of

the Company (continued)
(i) Pre-IPO share options plan (continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2004, certain Pre-IPO Share Options to
subscribe for a total of 3,871,510 underlying shares (after adjustments arising
from the issue of rights and bonus shares and capital reorganisation on 5th
February 2003 and 28th May 2003 respectively) which had been granted to
two directors lapsed as the relevant directors failed to exercise the same
within 3 months after the relevant directors ceased to be the directors of Value
Convergence. Since the date of the grant of the Pre-IPO Share Options up to
31st December 2004 and 31st December 2003, none of the Pre-IPO Share
Options were exercised or cancelled. Movements in the number of Pre-IPO
Share Options outstanding during the year are as follows (after adjustments
arising from the issue of rights and bonus shares and capital reorganisation
on 5th February 2003 and 28th May 2003 respectively):

Number of Pre-IPO
Share Options
2004 2003

At beginning of the year 9,740,208 9,740,208
Lapsed during the year (3,871,510) –

At end of the year 5,868,698 9,740,208
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26 SHARE OPTION (continued)
(b) Share options schemes of Value Convergence Holdings Limited, subsidiary of

the Company (continued)
(ii) Share options scheme

The Share Options Scheme (“Share Options Scheme”) was adopted by Value
Convergence on 29th November 2001 (which superseded the previous share
options scheme of Value Convergence adopted on 14th March 2001).

As at 31st December 2004, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,188,718
and 23,160,565 underlying shares granted on 9th July 2002 and 25th March
2004 (“Share Options”) pursuant to the Share Options Scheme at an exercise
price of HK$1.0 per share (after adjustments arising from the issue of rights
and bonus shares and capital reorganisation on 5th February 2003 and 28th
May 2003 respectively) and HK$0.64 per share respectively were outstanding,
which represents 11.5% (2003: 1.8%) of the shares of Value Convergence in
issue as at 31st December 2004. The adjusted closing price of Value
Convergence’s shares immediately before 9th July 2002 and the closing price
of the Value Convergence’s shares immediately before 25th March 2004 were
HK$0.65 and HK$0.64 per share respectively. The Share Options have duration
of 10 years from the date of grant, i.e. between 9th July 2002 to 8th July 2012
and between 25th March 2004 to 24th March 2014 respectively. Accordingly to
the Share Options Scheme, any Share Options granted shall lapse upon the
expiration of 3 months after the relevant grantee ceases to be employed (if
applicable) by the Value Convergence Group. The following are details of the
outstanding Share Options as at 31st December 2004 (after adjustments arising
from the issue of rights and bonus shares and capital reorganisation on 5th
February 2003 and 28th May 2003 respectively):

As at 31st December 2004 As at 31st December 2003
No. of underlying No. of underlying

Shares to be Shares to be
Exercise issued upon the issued upon the

Categories of price per Total no. exercise of the Total no. exercise of the
grantees share of grantees Share Options of grantees Share Options

HK$

Directors of the Company 1.0 2 982,114 3 1,473,171
Employees 1.0 22 1,782,539 26 1,821,823
Employees 0.64 58 23,160,565 – –
Other eligible persons 1.0 6 1,424,065 5 933,008

Total 88 27,349,283 34 4,228,002
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26 SHARE OPTION (continued)
(b) Share options schemes of Value Convergence Holdings Limited, subsidiary of

the Company (continued)
(ii) Share options scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2004, certain Share Options to subscribe
for a total of 39,284 underlying shares (after adjustments arising from the
issue of rights and bonus shares and capital reorganisation on 5th February
2003 and 28th May 2003 respectively) which had been granted to four
employees lapsed as the relevant employees failed to exercise the same within
3 months after the relevant employees ceased to be the employees of Value
Convergence. Since the date of the grant of the Share Options up to 31st
December 2004 and 31st December 2003, none of the Share Options were
exercised or cancelled. Movements in the number of Share Options outstanding
during the year are as follows (after adjustments arising from the issue of
rights and bonus shares and capital reorganisation on 5th February 2003 and
28th May 2003 respectively):

Number of Share Options
2004 2003

At beginning of the year 4,228,002 4,861,465
Share Options granted during the year 23,160,565 –
Lapsed during the year (39,284) (633,463)

At end of the year 27,349,283 4,228,002
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27 RESERVES
Group

Investment
properties Capital

Share revaluation reserve Legal Accumulated
premium reserve (Note) reserve losses Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st January 2003 19,189 79,214 357,785 – (225,351) 230,837
Surplus on revaluation

of investment properties – 4,000 – – – 4,000
Revaluation surplus

attributable to
minority shareholders – (266) – – – (266)

Loss for the year – – – – (26,334) (26,334)
Issue of rights shares 32,689 – – – – 32,689
Share issuance expenses (2,441) – – – – (2,441)
Exercise of share options 240 – – – – 240

At 31st December 2003
and 1st January 2004 49,677 82,948 357,785 – (251,685) 238,725

Issue of shares 529,813 – – – – 529,813
Reserve realised upon

disposal of investment
properties – (56,176) – – – (56,176)

Share issue expenses (16,576) – – – – (16,576)
Exercise of share options 5,066 – – – – 5,066
Retained earnings

transferred to legal reserve – – – 254 (254) –
Profit for the year – – – – 65,157 65,157
Dividends paid – – (3,776) – – (3,776)

At 31st December 2004 567,980 26,772 354,009 254 (186,782) 762,233
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27 RESERVES (continued)
Company

Capital
Share reserve Accumulated

premium (Note) losses Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st January 2003 19,189 357,785 (218,779) 158,195
Issue of rights shares 32,689 – – 32,689
Share issue expenses (2,441) – – (2,441)
Exercise of share options 240 – – 240
Loss for the year – – (8,685) (8,685)

At 31st December 2003 and
1st January 2004 49,677 357,785 (227,464) 179,998

Issue of shares 529,813 – – 529,813
Share issue expenses (16,576) – – (16,576)
Exercise of share options 5,066 – – 5,066
Loss for the year – – (5,705) (5,705)
Dividends paid – (3,776) – (3,776)

At 31st December 2004 567,980 354,009 (233,169) 688,820

Note:

Pursuant to a scheme of capital reduction, which became effective on 29th June 1993, the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong approved the cancellation of the Company’s share premium account which, on
that date, was stated at HK$127,274,212. By virtue of the same court’s sanction, the issued and fully
paid share capital of the Company was also reduced by HK$230,510,521 through a reduction in the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company. The credits arising from the cancellation of the
share premium account and the reduction of the share capital account, in the aggregate amount of
HK$357,784,733 were transferred to a capital reserve account. The capital reserve account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company if there is not outstanding any debt or claim
against the Company which was in existence on the effective date of the capital reduction. In view of
the fact that the Company receives no claim, demand, action or proceedings in respect of any such
debt or claim since June 1993 and in view of the fact that any such debt or claim has been statute-
barred under Hong Kong law and irrecoverable against the Company, the Company is of the view
that the reserve is distributable to the Company’s shareholders.
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28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net cash used in operations

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Operating profit/(loss) 76,332 (30,774)
Realised loss/(gain) on trading of other investments 3,425 (9,228)
Unrealised gain on holding of other investments (1,312) (958)
Depreciation of fixed assets 17,683 16,154
Amortisation of trading rights 507 464
Amortisation of goodwill – 2,614
Gain on partial disposal of investment in a subsidiary – (149)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (1,400) 478
Gain on disposal of investment property (57,176) –
Exchange loss – 48
Impairment of fixed assets – 3,080
Impairment of investment securities – 1,200
Reversal of impairment of investment securities (3,117) –
Interest income from authorised financial institutions (446) (712)
Negative goodwill (1,204) –
Dividend income (938) (200)

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 32,354 (17,983)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 369 (749)
Increase in accounts receivables (94,792) (119,225)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables (24,204) 7,168
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from

related companies (690) 1,978
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payables (50,196) 58,626
Decrease in rental deposits (407) (70)
(Decrease)/increase in accrued liabilities and

other payables (16,783) 26,324

Net cash used in operations (154,349) (43,931)
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28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Share capital Former Short term Finance lease
including premium Minority interests Shareholders’ loan  shareholders’ loan Bank loan  bank borrowings  payable

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st January 271,674 164,476 62,952 24,258 – – – – – – – – – –
Minority interests’ profit/(loss) – – 4,486 (7,648) – – – – – – – – – –
Revaluation surplus attributable

to minority interests – – – 266 – – – – – – – – – –
Acquisition of subsidiaries

attributable to minority
interests – – 9,502 42,025 – – – – – – – – – –

Decrease in minority interests
resulting from acquisition
of subsidiaries from
minority shareholders – – (1,324) – – – – – – – – – – –

Partial disposal of investment
in subsidiaries attributable
to minority interests – – – 4,051 – – – – – – – – – –

Cash (outflows)/inflows from
financing/net short-term
loan borrowing/repayment 395,039 107,198 – – 23,158 – (24,556) – – (106,335) 15,000 – (482 ) –

Acquisition of a subsidiary
settled by issuance of shares 364,511 – – – – – – – – – – – – –

Bank borrowings of
subsidiaries acquired – – – – – – – – – 106,335 – – – –

Finance lease of subsidiaries
acquired – – – – – – – – – – – – 1,299 –

Former shareholders’ loan
of subsidiaries acquired – – – – – – 69,556 – – – – – – –

Decrease in former
shareholders’ loan by
convertible notes issued – – – – – – (45,000) – – – – – – –

At 31st December 1,031,224 271,674 75,616 62,952 23,158 – – – – – 15,000 – 817 –
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28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(c) Acquisitions and major non-cash transaction

(i) Acquisition of Mocha Slot for the year ended 31st December 2004
On 9th June 2004, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the issued
share capital of Mocha Slot which is engaged in the leasing of electronic
gaming machines and provision of ancillary management services to SJM in
Macau. The purchase consideration was settled by issuance of new shares of
the Company (Note 25(b)). The fair value of the net identifiable assets of
Mocha Slot at the date of acquisition was approximately HK$4,737,000. Direct
costs related to the acquisition amounted to approximately HK$706,000 and
were fully settled in cash. The resulting goodwill was approximately
HK$361,427,000.

The fair value of the assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition of Mocha
Slot are as follows:

2004
HK$’000

Fixed assets (note 14) 64,449
Accounts receivables 5,832
Bank balances and cash 10,971
Other current assets 7,569
Shareholders’ loans (69,556)
Deferred tax liabilities (262)
Other current liabilities (14,266)

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 4,737
Minority interests (947)

The Company’s share of the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired 3,790

Purchase consideration – settled by issuance of new shares 364,511
Direct costs related to the acquisition – settled by cash 706

Total costs of acquisition 365,217
Less: the Company’s share of the fair value of net

identifiable assets acquired 3,790

Goodwill arising from acquisition of Mocha Slot (Note 12) 361,427

Payment of direct costs related to the acquisition (706)
Bank balance and cash acquired 10,971

Net cash inflow from acquisition of Mocha Slot 10,265
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28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(c) Acquisitions and major non-cash transaction (continued)

(ii) Acquisition of Value Convergence Holdings Limited for the year ended 31st
December 2003

2003
HK$’000

Net assets acquired
Fixed asset 18,477
Intangible assets 25,478
Other long-term assets 6,534
Trade and other receivables 118,428
Bank balances and cash 122,900
Trade and other payables (43,297)
Bank borrowings (106,335)
Minority shareholders’ interests (42,025)

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 100,160
Goodwill arising from acquisition of Value

Convergence Holdings Limited 598

Total costs of acquisition 100,758

Satisfied by
Cash 100,758

Analysis of the net cash inflow in respect of the acquisition of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited:

2003
HK$’000

Cash consideration (100,758)
Bank balances and cash in hand acquired 122,900

Net cash inflow in respect of the
acquisition of Value Convergence Holdings Limited 22,142

(d) On 31st May 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of additional interests of
subsidiaries in Technology segment from its subsidiary, Value Convergence Holdings
Limited at a consideration of HK$27,900,000 and direct expenses of HK$325,000.
Balance of approximately HK$8,805,000, which represents Value Convergence
Holdings Limited minority interests on the gain on disposal of the Technology segment
and the direct expenses, was recognised as the goodwill on the acquisition.
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28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(e) On 1st June 2004 and 16th December 2004, the Company completed the acquisition

of an additional 10% and 12.5% equity interest respectively in Elixir Group Limited
from the other minority shareholders in aggregate consideration of HK$217,000.
Negative goodwill amounting to approximately HK$1,204,000, which represented the
surplus of the net assets value of Elixir Group Limited to the consideration, was
directly credited to the profit and loss account.

29 PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31st December 2004, the Group’s bank deposits amounting to HK$177,000 (2003:
HK$184,000) were pledged for tendering of contracts with the Macau government by a
subsidiary of the Group. As at 31st December 2003, the Group’s bank deposits amounting
to HK$120,000 were pledged to secure a letter of guarantee to the extent of HK$120,000
granted by a bank to the utilities companies in lieu of cash.

30 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

At 31st December 2004, the Group had contracted commitments in respect of
renovation project as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contracted but not provided for 437 4,547

(b) Commitments under operating leases
The Group leases certain of its office properties and furniture under operating lease
arrangements. At 31st December 2004, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Not later than one year 19,620 4,853
Later than one year and not later than five years 46,835 4,958

66,455 9,811



Melco International Development Limited Annual Report 2004 95

Notes to the Accounts

30 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(c) Future operating lease arrangements

At 31st December 2004, the Group had entered into lease arrangements with SJM
and the other lessee for leasing of its owned gaming machines. In addition to a fixed
monthly rent of HK$7,767 (equivalent to MOP8,000) per month for one of the lease
arrangements, the Group will be entitled to lease receipts calculated at an agreed
percentage of net win from each gaming machine leased on an accrual basis in
accordance with the respective lease arrangements. The future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under such non-cancelable operating lease arrangements at 31st
December 2004 are as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Not later than one year 280 –
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,118 –
Later than five years 1,150 –

2,548 –

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions or vice versa. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control or common significant influence.

(a) The amount due from an investee company is unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

(b) The trade receivables include amounts due from related companies in relation to
sales of computer hardware and software of approximately HK$14,876,000 (2003:
HK$1,808,000).

The trade receivables include amounts due from SJM in relation to the leasing of
gaming machines and provision of ancillary management services of approximately
HK$8,462,000 (2003: Nil).

The prepayments, deposits and other receivables include amounts due from customers
on contracts in relation to sales of computer hardware and software to related
companies of approximately HK$1,044,000 (2003: HK$1,702,000)

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contract costs incurred plus attributable profits 50,521 5,683
Less: Progress billings to date (49,477) (3,981)

1,044 1,702
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) The accruals and other payables include deposits received from related companies

in relation to sales of computer hardware and software of approximately
HK$367,735,000 (2003: HK$10,180,000).

(d) Significant related party transactions, which were carried out in the normal course of
the Group’s business are as follows:

Group
2004 2003

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Catering income received from directors
and related companies (i) 4,306 2,486

Insurance premiums paid to a related company (ii) 1,004 1,173
Management fees paid to a related company (iii) 276 569
Souvenirs sold to a related company (iv) 681 418
Brokerage commission income earned

from certain directors of the Group
or their relatives (v) 243 106

Sales of computer hardware and software
to related companies (vi) 81,644 15,634

Management fees received from
a related company (vii) 600 –

Interest expense on loan from a shareholder (viii) 23 –
Interest expense on convertible notes

to related parties (ix) 1,011 –
Income from leasing of gaming machines

and provision of ancillary management
services to a related company (x) 44,890 –

Management fees received from a
jointly controlled entity (xi) 6,671 –

Notes:

(i) The Group received catering income in respect of restaurant operations from certain
directors and related companies for services provided at a discount ranging between
15% and 40%.

(ii) The Group paid insurance premiums to Jardine Shun Tak Insurance Brokers Limited,
an associate of Shun Tak Holdings Limited (“STHL”), to insure the properties and
employees of the Group under the terms and conditions applicable to customers of
comparable standing. Dr. Stanley Ho and Madam Winnie Ho Yuen Ki, a director and
an ex-director of the Company, are also a director and an ex-director and/or have
direct and/or indirect beneficial interests in STHL.

(iii) The Group paid management fees to Shun Tak Property Management Limited
(“STPML”), a subsidiary of STHL; on a reimbursement basis for building management
expenditure paid by STPML on behalf of the Group.

(iv) The sales of souvenirs to STDM, a related company of which Dr. Stanley Ho and
Madam Winnie Ho Yuen Ki are director and ex-director, respectively, and/or have
direct and/or indirect beneficial interests, were made according to the published prices
and conditions offered to customers of the Group, except that a longer credit period
was normally granted. The balance due from STDM at 31st December 2004 was
HK$519,000 (2003: HK$429,000) (Note 21).
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(v) Brokerage commission income earned from transactions with related parties was at

prices and terms no less than those transacted with other third party customers of the
Group.

(vi) Service fees charged and computer hardware and software sold to related companies
were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms no less than
those charged to and contracted with other third party customers of the Group.

(vii) The management fee to GCIL, a related company of which Dr. Stanley Ho is the
director, was determined on the base agreed between the Group and GCIL (see Note
21).

(viii) Interest expense on loan from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group was
charged at 4 per cent per annum. The loan was unsecured and repayable on demand.

(ix) Interest expense on convertible notes to related parties was charged at 4 per cent per
annum (see Note 24).

(x) The amount represents income from leasing of gaming machines and provision of
ancillary management services to SJM.

(xi) The management fee from the jointly controlled entity (Note 2) was determined on the
base agreed between the Group and the jointly controlled entity. The amount due from
the jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2004:

Principal
activities and Particulars of Effective

Place of place of issued share interest
Name incorporation operation capital held

Melco Leisure and British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100%
Entertainment Group Islands holding in share of US$1
Limited (formerly known Hong Kong
as Palmsville
Developments Limited)1

Mocha Slot Group British Virgin Leasing gaming 100 ordinary 80%
Limited2, 3 Islands machines and shares of US$1

provision of each
ancillary
management
services to the
lessees of its
gaming machines
in Macau
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32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Principal
activities and Particulars of Effective

Place of place of issued share interest
Name incorporation operation capital held

Mocha Slot Macau Provision of 2 ordinary 80%
Management consultancy shares of
Limited2, 3 service for MOP24,000

entertainment and MOP1,000
business and each
system
management
in Macau

Aberdeen Restaurant Hong Kong Restaurant 8,060 A shares 86.68%
Enterprises Limited2, 4 operations and of HK$1,000

property each and
investment in 33,930 B
Hong Kong shares of

HK$500 each

Tai Pak Sea-Food Hong Kong Catering, 5 founders’ 84.76%
Restaurant Limited2, 4 restaurant shares of

vessel holding HK$100 each
and letting and 13,495
in Hong Kong ordinary shares

of HK$100 each

Jumbo Catering Hong Kong Provision of 220 ordinary 86.68%
Management management shares of
Limited2, 4 services in HK$5,000

Hong Kong

iAsia Online Systems British Virgin Provision of 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited2 Islands online trading of US$1

software in
Hong Kong

Elixir Group Limited2 Hong Kong Provision of 833,333 ordinary 100%
hardware and shares of
software in HK$1 each
Hong Kong

Elixir Group (Macau) Macau Provision of 2 ordinary 100%
Limited2 hardware and shares of

software in MOP450,000
Macau and

MOP50,000
each
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32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Principal
activities and Particulars of Effective

Place of place of issued share interest
Name incorporation operation capital held

Melco Financial British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary share 100%
Group Limited Islands holding in of US$1
(formerly known Hong Kong
as Melco Finance
and Technology
Limited)1

Value Convergence Hong Kong Investment 238,154,999 67.57%
Holdings Limited2 holding in ordinary shares

Hong Kong of HK$0.1 each

VC Brokerage Hong Kong Provision of 230,000,000 67.57%
Limited (Formerly brokerage and ordinary shares
known as VC CEF securities of HK$1 each
Brokerage Limited)2 margin financing

services in
Hong Kong

VC Futures Hong Kong Provision of 30,000,000 67.57%
Limited (Formerly futures and ordinary
known as VC CEF options shares of
Futures Limited)2 contracts HK$1 each

dealing services
in Hong Kong

VC Capital Limited Hong Kong Provision of 20,000,000 67.57%
(Formerly known corporate ordinary
as VC CEF Capital finance shares of
Limited)2 and advisory HK$1 each

services in
Hong Kong

VC Capital PRC Provision of HK$1,000,000 67.57%
(Shenzhen) Limited consultancy
(Formerly known as services in the
VC CFN Capital PRC
(Shenzhen) Limited)2

VC Securities Hong Kong Provision of 2 ordinary 67.57%
Investments Limited security shares of HK$1
(Formerly known as investment each
VC CFN service to group
Investments Limited)2 companies in

Hong Kong
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32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Principal
activities and Particulars of Effective

Place of place of issued share interest
Name incorporation operation capital held

VC Asset Management Hong Kong Provision of 500,000 67.57%
Limited (Formerly asset ordinary
known as VC CFN management shares of
Asset Management services to HK$1 each
Limited)2 clients in

Hong Kong

VC Investment British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 67.57%
Management Limited Islands holding share of
(Formerly known in Hong Kong US$1
as Panorama
Invest Limited)2

VC Finance Hong Kong Money lending 1,000,000 67.57%
Limited (Formerly in Hong Kong ordinary
known as VC shares of
CFN Finance HK$1 each
Limited)2

VC Research Hong Kong Provision of 500,000 67.57%
Limited (Formerly research ordinary
known as VC services in shares of
CFN Research Hong Kong HK$1 each
Limited)2

VC Financial Macau Provision of 2 ordinary 67.57%
Advisory financial shares of
(Macau) consultancy MOP24,000
Limited2 and related and

services MOP1,000
in Macau each

VC Services Hong Kong Provision of 10,000 67.57%
Limited (Formerly management ordinary shares
known as iAsia services to of HK$1 each
Services Limited)2 group companies

in Hong Kong

Melco Services British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100%
Limited1 Islands holding in share of US$1

Hong Kong
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32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Principal
activities and Particulars of Effective

Place of place of issued share interest
Name incorporation operation capital held

Proven Success Limited1 British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100%
Islands holding in share of

Hong Kong US$1

Zonic Technology Limited2 British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100%
Islands holding in share of

Hong Kong US$1

1 Share held directly by the Company

2 Share held indirectly by the Company

3 Acquired by the Group during the year (note 28(c)(i))

4 Audited by auditors other than PricewaterhouseCoopers

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affect the results of the Group. To give full details of subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2004, the Group had provided a corporate guarantee for a subsidiary,
VC Brokerage Limited, amounting to HK$70 million (2003: HK$50 million) to a bank in
respect of banking facilities granted to the subsidiary .

34 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
On 23rd November 2004, the Company entered into a Heads of Agreement (“Heads of
Agreement”) with Publishing and Broadcasting Limited (“PBL”) and PBL Asia Investments
Limited (“PBL Asia”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBL, to establish a joint venture group
for pursuance of gaming and hospitality businesses (“JV Group”). The Heads of Agreement
was superseded by a Subscription Agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) entered into
between the parties on 23rd December 2004. Under the Subscription Agreement, the
Company contributed its interests in Mocha Slot Group and 70% interests of Great Wonders
to the JV Group while PBL contributed HK$1.27 billion (equivalent to US$ 163 million) cash
to the JV Group. The Subscription Agreement was completed on 8th March 2005.

On 17th March 2005, the Company entered into an agreement (“Great Wonders Agreement”)
with Melco Entertainment Limited (“Melco Entertainment”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary
within the JV Group, pursuant to which Melco Entertainment will buy and the Company will
sell 30% equity interests in Great Wonders to be acquired from STDM for a consideration
of HK$400 million, which is identical to the amount of consideration payable by the Company
to STDM under the Third Agreement (see note 16). The completion of the Great Wonders
Agreement is conditional upon the completion of the Third Agreement and it is contemplated
that the completions of the Third Agreement and the Great Wonders Agreement shall occur
simultaneously.

35 APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS
The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 7th April 2005.
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MELCO INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

NOTICE OF 90TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 90th annual general meeting of Melco International Development
Limited will be held at 38th Floor, The Centrium, 60 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong on
Wednesday, 18th May 2005 at 3:30 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. To consider and receive the audited financial statements and the reports of the directors
and auditors for the financial year ended 31st December 2004.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2004.

3. To re-elect directors and to fix the remuneration of the directors.

4. To appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration, a Special Notice having been given
pursuant to Sections 116C and 132(1) of the Companies Ordinance of the intention to
propose the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be and are hereby appointed auditors of the
Company in place of the retiring auditors, Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers, to hold office
until conclusion of the next annual general meeting at remuneration to be fixed by the
board of directors.”

5. As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares of the Company be and it is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which may be repurchased
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or any other stock exchange recognised
for this purpose by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the Hong Kong Code on Share
Repurchases pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall not
exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly;
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(c) for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever
is the earlier of:

i. the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

ii. the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by the Companies Ordinance to be held; and

iii. the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting.”

“Shares” means shares of all classes in the capital of the Company and other
securities which carry a right to subscribe or purchase shares of the Company.”

6. As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as ordinary
resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

(I) “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution and pursuant to Section 57B of the
Companies Ordinance, the exercise by the directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes
and other securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into
shares of the Company) which might require the exercise of such power be
and it is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which might require the exercise of such power after the end of the
Relevant Period;
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(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally
or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise)
by the directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of
this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue, (ii) the exercise
of any rights of subscription or conversion under any existing warrants, bonds,
debentures, notes and other securities issued by the Company which carry
rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the Company, (iii) any
option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant
or issue to officers and/or employees of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company, shall not exceed the aggregate
of:

(aa) 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution plus;

(bb) (if the directors of the Company are so authorised by a separate
resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the nominal amount of
share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company subsequent
to the passing of this Resolution (up to a maximum equivalent to 10 per
cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution), and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly;

(d) for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earlier of:

i. the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

ii. the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting
of the Company is required by the Companies Ordinance to be held;
and

iii. the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares of the Company or issue of options,
warrants or other securities giving the right to subscribe for shares of the
Company, open for a period fixed by the directors of the Company to holders
of shares whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
(and, where appropriate, to holders of other securities entitled to the offer) on
a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares of the
Company (or, where appropriate, such other securities), (subject in all cases
to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or
having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any
territory applicable to the Company).”
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(II) “THAT the directors of the Company be and they are hereby authorised to exercise
the powers of the Company referred to in paragraph (a) of the resolution set out as
Resolution (I) in item 6 of the notice of this meeting in respect of the share capital of
the Company referred to in sub-paragraph (bb) of paragraph (c) of such resolution.”

7. As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT conditional on the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) granting the listing of and permission to deal in the shares of the
Company to be issued pursuant to the exercise of any options (“Options”) granted under
the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 8 March 2002 (“Share Option
Scheme”), the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized, at their absolute
discretion, to grant, in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, all applicable
laws and the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange as may be amended from time to time, Options and to allot and issue shares
pursuant to the exercise of such Options up to 10 per cent. of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of passing of this Resolution.”

8. As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the existing 700,000,000 issued and unissued shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital
of the Company be sub-divided into 1,400,000,000 shares of HK$0.50 each and the board
lot size be changed from 2,000 existing shares to 1,000 subdivided shares.”

By Order of the Board
Tsang Yuen Wai, Samuel

Secretary

Hong Kong, 18th April 2005

Registered Office:
38th Floor, The Centrium,
60 Wyndham Street,
Central
Hong Kong
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Notes:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the notice is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and on a poll vote in his stead. A proxy need not be
a member of the Company.

2. In order to be valid, a form of proxy must be deposited at the Company’s registered office together
with a power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power of attorney or authority, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting or adjourned meeting.

3. The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 12th May, 2005 to Wednesday, 18th May,
2005, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
determine the identity of shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrars, Standard Registrars Limited, G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 11th May, 2005.

4. With regard to item 5 above, the directors wish to draw the attention of the shareholders to the
circular which summarises the more important provisions of the Listing Rules relating to the repurchase
of shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited by a company and will be despatched to the
shareholders together with the annual report. The present general mandate to repurchase shares
given by the shareholders expires at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, accordingly, a
renewal of that general mandate is now being sought.

5. With regard to item 6 above, the directors wish to state that, currently, they have no plans to issue
any additional new shares of the Company (other than pursuant to any of items (ii), (iii) or (iv)
contained in paragraph (c) of the Resolution (I)). The present general mandate to issue shares given
by the shareholders expires at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, accordingly, a renewal
of that general mandate is now being sought.


